# **Swiss Center for International Health Sexual and Reproductive Health Unit**

Associated Institute of the University of Basel

## End Review of ACT!2030 Phases 1-4: Youth-led, data-driven accountability for the Sustainable Development Goals

## **Annexes - Final Report**



#### **Contacts**



Swiss Tropical and Public Health Institute Schweizerisches Tropen- und Public Health-Institut Institut Tropical et de Santé Publique Suisse

Associated Institute of the University of Basel

Swiss Tropical and Public Health Institute Socinstrasse 57

P.O. Box 4002 Basel Switzerland

#### www.swisstph.ch

Dr. Adriane Martin Hilber Senior Specialist Sexual and Reproductive Health (SRH) Deputy Unit Leader, SRH Unit Swiss Centre for International Health

Tel: +41 61 284 8337 Skype: amartinhilber

Email: adriane.martinhilber@swisstph.ch



#### **UNAIDS Secretariat**

20 Avenue Appia CH-1211 Geneva Switzerland Reference Number: 2017-08 ruben.ramos@unaids.org

## **Table of Contents**

Annex 1: Stakeholder lists for 12 country case and country desk studies	1
Annex 2: Interviewee stakeholder lists	27
Annex 3: References	36
Annex 4: Output table	52
Annex 5: ACT!2030 Evaluation Questions	59
Annex 6: Interview and focus group discussion guide	66
Annex 7: Survey Questionnaire	69
Annex 8: eRoundtable Discussion Questions	74
Annex 9: Terms of Reference- Country case studies	77
Annex 10: Terms of Reference- Swiss-based youth consultants	80
Annex 11: Terms of Reference- National youth consultants	83

#### Annex 1: Stakeholder lists for 12 country case and country desk studies

The below table lists all stakeholders of ACT Alliances at global level and in country, including Alliance Members, technical partners, decision-making partners and direct beneficiaries.

#### **Algeria**

Surname	First name	Position	Organisation	Stakeholder Category
Zeddam	Adel	Director	UNAIDS	ACT!2030 Partner
Hammadi	Samia	Assistant Director	MOH	Other Stakeholder
Aissani	Mohamed	Peer Educator	MSM Network	Youth Beneficiary
Mansouri	Nassim	Young Data Reporter	National Alliance	ACT!2030 Member
Benchoubane	Hadia	Young Data Reporter	National Alliance	ACT!2030 Member
Adjabi	Lotfi	Executive Director	National Alliance	ACT!2030 Member
Smaili	Raouf Walid	Supervisor	National Alliance	ACT!2030 Member
Khati	Abdelbassir	Advocate	National Alliance	ACT!2030 Member
Kamel	Abderraouf	National Coordinator	National Alliance	ACT!2030 Member

## Bulgaria

Organization	Туре	Contact person	E-mail	Web
42 Training/42 Foundation	NGO	Mr. Alexander Kumanov	42fond@gmail.com	www.42training.org
Bulgarian Centre for Not-for-profit Law	NGO	Ms Nadia Shabani	nadia@bcnl.org	www.bcnl.org
Bulgarian Family Planning Association	NGO	Dr. Radosvet Stamenkova	rstamenkova@safesex. bg	www.safesex.bg
Club S.U.P.E.R., Sofia (Y-PEER)	Non-Formal Youth Group	Ms Elisaveta Todorova	clubsupersofia@gmail.c om	www.y-peer.org
Committee on Education and Science, Parliament	Governmental	Ms Milena Damyanova	milena.damyanova@par liament.bg	www.parliament.bg/en/p arliamentarycommittees
UNFPA/UNICEF	External Expert	Dr. Elena Zlatanova	ezlatanova@gmail.com	N/A
Learn Foundation	NGO	Ms Nikoleta Popkostadinova	nikoleta@loveguide.bg	www.loveguide.bg
Municipality of Gabrovo	Local Government	Ms Tanya Rakovic	gabrovo@gabrovo.bg	www.gabrovo.bg
Municipality of Gorna Oryahovitsa	Local Government	Ms Milena Nikolova	m.nikolova@goryahovic a.org	www.g-oryahovica.org
Municipality of Vratsa	Local Government	Mr. Kalin Kamenov	kmet@vratza.bg	www.vratza.bg
National Centre of Public Health and Analysis	Governmental	Ms Anina Chileva	anina.chileva@gmail.co m	www.ncph
National Network for Children	NGO	Ms Dani Koleva	dani.koleva@nmd.bg	www.nmd.bg
Red Cross Youth, Shumen	NGO		shumen@redcross.bg	youth.redcross.bg/tag/b mchkshumen/
Pink Glasses, Varna	NGO	Ms Maya Doneva	hi@pinkglasses.org	www.pinkglasses.org

Pulse Foundation	NGO	Mr. Lyudmil Iliev	pulse.aids@gmail.com	www.pulsfoundation.org/ en/
Social dialog 2001	NGO	Ms Svetla Peneva	soc_dialog@abv.bg	www.socialendialog2001 .org
Students Municipal Council, Vratsa	Youth Organization	Ms Simona Jordanova	simona@abv.bg	
Youth parliament Gorna Oriahovica	NGO	Ms Ivelina Borisova	gyparlament@abv.bg	www.gyparlament.com
YOUTHub	Youth NGO	Ms Madlen Nenkova	office@youthub.bg	www.youthub.bg

#### India

Surname	First name	Position	Organisation	Stakeholder Category
Singh	Abbhinaav	Director	DOVE INDIA	ACT!2030 Member
Tripathi	Siddharth	Head of Programs	Students for Good	ACT!2030 Member
Singh	Ekta	District President	ABVP	ACT!2030 Member
Kumari	Ayushi	Student	BHU	Youth Beneficiary
Keshari	Riddhima	Student	вни	Data Reporter
Kumar	Akhl	Student	SMS	Data Reporter
Agrawal	Srikant	Vice President	MYS-Yuwa	ACT!2030 Member

#### Jamaica

Surname	First name	Position	Organisation	Stakeholder Category
Long	Monique	Executive Director	Adolescent and Youth Health	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
Green	Renee		JFLAG/Equality for All	Youth Beneficiary
Nelson	Jaevion	Executive Director	Police Youth Club	Other Stakeholder
Porter	Jermaine		Jamaiaca Network of Sero Postives	Other Stakeholder
Patrick	Jumoke	Executive Director	Transwave	Other Stakeholder
McLean	Neish	Executive Director	Eve for Life	Other Stakeholder
Crawford	Joy	Co-Founder	National Secondary Students Council	Other Stakeholder
Dennis	Antoinette		Jamaica Union of Tertiary Students	Other Stakeholder
Smith	Sineal		Jamaicans for Justice	Other Stakeholder
Malcom	Rodje	Legal Officer	Caribbean Vulnerable Communities Coalition	Other Stakeholder
Sutherland	Sannia		Jamaica Aids Support for Life	Other Stakeholder
Lalor	Patrick		Ashe	Other Stakeholder
Wilson	Conroy	Executive Director	FAMPLAN	Other Stakeholder
Levene	Christan	Programme Officer	Office of the Children's Advocate	Other Stakeholder

Gordon Harrisson	Dianne		Child Protection and Family Services Agency	Other Stakeholder
Gage-Grey	Rosalee		Ministry of Health - Guidance & Counselling Unit	Other Stakeholder
Magnus Watson	Annakaye		Ministry of Health - Adolescent and HIV Unit	Other Stakeholder
Chambers	Joy		National Family Planning Board	Other Stakeholder
Cousins	Nicola		UNAIDS	Other Stakeholder
Stevens	Erva Jean		UNFPA	Other Stakeholder
Gunter	Marvin	SRH Programme Manager	UNDP	Other Stakeholder
Lawrence	Ruth		Ministry of Youth, Education and Information	Other Stakeholder
Condell	Novia		UNICEF	Other Stakeholder
Campbell	Andrea		UNFPA	Other Stakeholder

Name	School/Affiliation	Name	School/Affiliation
Sheldon R. Wilson	Spanish Town High	Vashaney Headlam	Jamaica College
Davion P. Walker	Spanish Town High	Odeka Haughton	Equality Youth
Jenhardo Coales	Spanish Town High	Rayon Simpson	STATHS
Jamila Wilson	Spanish Town High	Mario Samuels	Ardenne High
Shamar Mundell	St. Jago High School	Leon Hall	The Mico University
Abigail Christian	The Mico University	Judith Baugh	The Mico University

Oneilia Powell	The Mico University	Abbygale Baker	The Mico University
Elicia Yorke	The Mico University	Tevon Wallace	The Mico University
Mackiba Spencer	The Mico University	Imanie Graham	The Mico University
Toni Ann Darby	The Mico University	Vernardo Gowans	The Mico University
Danielle Vernon	The Mico University	Alexis Campbell	The Mico University
Reneka Smith	The Mico University	Marlon Green	The Mico University
Deveno Campbell	The Mico University	Abigail Honeyghan	Bellfield High School
Christenna Miles	The Mico University	Glacia Grossette	Robert Lightbourne High
Sharon Hall	The Mico University	Chereisse Dixon	Robert Lightbourne High
Toni-Ann Richards	The Mico University	Rushieda McDaniel	Roger Clarke High School
Shaeen Allen	The Mico University	Daswan Clarke	Roger Clarke High School
Kimone Vernon	The Mico University	Miguel Smikle	Roger Clarke High School
Gabrielle Moulton	Meadowbrook High	Thayol Moss	Roger Clarke High School
Shavelli Sharpe	Meadowbrook High	Winsome Heron-Fearson	The Mico University
Shamar Moulton	Brown's Town High	Abbigale Grace	Robert Lightbourne High
Navaski Hammond	Jamaica College	Damaine Edwards	Mona High
Chelsea Wright	Campion College	Matthew Gillespie	Jamaica College
Tianna Samuels	Campion College	Demor Greave	Jamaica College
Mikaela Richardson	Campion College	Aesha Lacey	Kellits High
Alex Neil	UWI	Mickeala Gray	Kellits High
Charmaine Langoth	Garvey Maceo High	Reanna McKay	Kellits High
Dolres Matthew Miller	Garvey Maceo High	Romario Duffus	Kellits High

Nickisha Farquharson	Garvey Maceo High	Brianna Thomas	Mona High
Yashemabeth Mitchell	Garvey Maceo High	Javid Cameron	Mona High
Tajhne Ormsby	Garvey Maceo High	Mark Brown	Old Harbour High
Reneika Campbell	Garvey Maceo High	Omeika Wedderburn	Meadowbrook High
Maria Wilson	Garvey Maceo High	Felicia Udamisar	Meadowbrook High
Gwendolyn Forbes	Garvey Maceo High	Reshawn Hall	Annoto Bay High
Latoni Brown	Garvey Maceo High	Shakeal Norris	Annoto Bay High
Zorayah Harrison	Garvey Maceo High	Diandre Gray	Brown's Town High
Jorah Richards	Meadowbrook High	Kevoy Edwards	Jamaica College
Shandrika Ogilvie	Robert Lightbourne High	Jonah Dawkins	
Odayne Campbell	Jamaica College	Chadai Martin	Kellits High
Kathaniah Solomon	Roger Clarke High School	Tyrique Henry	Kellits High
Matio Williams	Roger Clarke High School	Tai-Moore Markland	Mona High
Timera Mercurius	Meadowbrook High	Matthew Griffiths	Mona High
Tiena Henry	Robert Lightbourne High	Kyle Campbell	STATHS
Easha Haynes	Robert Lightbourne High	Nicholai Thomas	Meadowbrook High
Shawn McIntosh	Robert Lightbourne High	Brandon Neil	Jamaica College
Jevaughn Thompson	Jamaica College	Zachary Green	Ardenne High
Alesha Brooke	Roger Clarke High School	Keno Clarke	Annoto Bay High
Renae Davis	Roger Clarke High School	Sydonnie Housen	St. Mary High School
Rasheed Richards	Mona High	Imanie Graham	St. Mary High School
Desare Morrison	Bellfield High School	Iesha Roberts	Brown's Town High

Samantha Larridice	Bellfield High School	Sabrina Marriott	Robert Lightbourne High
Roshawn Gayle	Bellfield High School	Fabian Morris	Jamaica College
Ashante Graham	Excelsior High School	Jeneil Samuels	Roger Clarke High School
Ruthann Walford	STATHS	Sara Holness	Roger Clarke High School
Jonathan Atkins	Meadowbrook High	Oneilia Walters	Mona High
Danielle Rhone	Meadowbrook High	Tyrell Wizzard	Mona High
Abigail- Joanna Edwards	Meadowbrook High	Damian Henry	Mona High
Tonye Housen	Annoto Bay High	Renae Green	University of the West Indies
Mareo McCormack	Annoto Bay High	Akime Edwards	N/A
Dishane Hibbert	Annoto Bay High	Shehnaz Wint	N/A
Narhain White	Brown's Town High	Matthew Morris	N/A
Kimberly Roach	University of the West Indies	Michale Anderson	DeCarteret College
Chelsea Wright	Campion College	Yasheme M. Martluck	N/A
Selina Herridge		Kurt Davis	Yes
Tariq Young	University of the West Indies	Davion Coombs	Marcus Garvey Technical High School
Rushay Blair	N/A	Destiny Rose	The Queens School
Tevin Rose	University of the Commonwealth Caribbean	Kadiedra Robinson	The Queen's school
Kimberley Thompson	University of the West Indies	Toniann Gayle	Montego Bay Community College
Samantha Walters	Belmont Academy	Annakay Hudson	Campion College
Nicolini S. Williams	University of the West Indies	Malike Kellier	N/A
Kadeem Thompson	UTECH	Kevaughn Knight	Manchester High School

Francine Derby	N/A	Shinay Ford	University of Technology
Alnastazia Watson	The Queen's School	Antonio Wint	N/A
Davian Hemmings	N/A	Jervorney Gorodn	University of the West Indies
Shemoy Thompson	DeCarteret College	Shevon McKenzie	N/A
Ashlee Singh	N/A	Tami-Ann Johnson	Sam Sharp Teachers College
Lisandria Thompson	University of the West Indies	Rasheem D. Martin	N/A
Jermi-Lee Nelson	University of the West Indies	Kari Buchanan	Campion College
Richard Palmer	Shortwood Teachers College	Jordan Patrick	Ardenne High School
Samantha C Johnson	University of the West Indies	Malkia I Higgins	Belair School
Tajna-Lee Shields	University of the West Indies	Michelle Thomas	N/A
A'Jay Edwards	Decarteret College	Patrick_lawson@icloud.com	N/A
Ashawna Peart	Manchester High School	Jessie Chance	UTECH
Shannique Bowden	University of the West Indies	Christopher Allen	St. Catherine High School
Jodi Bell	UTECH	Gareth Warren	N/A
Edward Waite	Frome Technical High	D'Andra Williams	Campion College
Johnair Powell	DeCarteret College	Roxanne White	N/A
Rajay Smith	Decarteret College	Antonette Hines	Campion College
Jesse James	Decarteret College	Ashawna Peart	Manchester High School
Shania Simpson	N/A	Marlon Thompson	University of the West Indies
osheena langley	Decateret college	Alana Bailey	DeCarteret College
Jonisha Jones	N/A	Dei-Rasi Freckleton	N/A

Jovante Anderson	Lafayette College	Mikhail Williams	The Edna Manley College of the Visual & Performing Arts
Brian Thompson	Utech	Danique Davis	N/A
Janoi Doyley	University of the West Indies	taniky Bailey	DeCarteret College
Denise Dennis	N/A	Daniela Woodbine	Belmont Academy
Antonette Dennis	DeCarteret College	Jovaine Smith	Munro College
Charlene Wright	Immaculate Conception High School	Joell Channer	Knox Community College
Deryck Rose	University of the West Indies	Paris-Michelle Barrett- Powell	N/A
shanique lawrence	N/A	Chevelle Campbell	University of the West Indies
Gregon Samuels	The Mico University College	Rena Robinson	Titchfield high
Ashley Brown	Knox College	Omar Samuels	N/A
Shaquille Ramsay	Bethel College	Kay Nelson	N/A
Taniky Bailey	Decarteret college	Joneil Brown	Caribbean Maritime Institute
Malyck Malcolm	University of the West Indies	Kerissa Gordon	N/A
Meisha-Gay Morris	Robert Lightbourne High	Shanoya Morris	University of the West Indies
Britney Allen	Kingston high school	Jade Crawford	Liberty Academy at the Priory
Rajae Lewis	N/A	Felisha McDonald	UWI
Jahnoy St.Jacques	Jamaica College	Anika Walsh	N/A
Roxann Underhill	N/A	Kelly-Ann Brie	N/A
Sade Brooks	Northern Caribbean University	Zion Cole	N/A
Shakeen Brown	UWI	Lisandria Thompson	University of the West Indies

Malika Allen	The Queen's School	Donique Givans	N/A
Richard Green	N/A	Kerrifer Thomas	N/A
Malik Mitchell	St Jago High School	Alana Bailey	DeCarteret College
Collins Omeiza Lawal	University of the West Indies	Courtney Haughton	UTECH
Hakeem Wellington	University of Technology	Doneque Johnson	N/A
Jason thompson	Vocational training development institute	Geraldine Lewis	DeCarteret College
Christina Williams	University of the West Indies	Shaniele Milton	HEART NTA
Deryck Rose	University of the West Indies	Demoye Whiteley	University of the West Indies
Taniky bailey	Decarteret college	Romari Frith	University of the West Indies
Katrina George	Central High School	Tojorn Barrington	University of the West Indies
Renee Davidson	Church Teachers' College	Romanya Hanson	N/A
Taniky bailey	DeCarteret College	Malika Allen	The Queen's School
Kamara Patterson	University of the West Indies	Andrew Orrett-Daniel Rodgers	Norman Manley Law School
Shanda Wallace	University of the West Indies	Raheem Small	Mock University
Susan Spencer	N/A	Kadene Brown	University of the West Indies
Osheena langley	DeCarteret College	Chris-Ann Gordon	The Queen's School
Sheldon Nembhard	N/A	Kamara Patterson	University of the West Indies
Andre murray	Distinction College	Abby-Sade Brooks	Northern Caribbean University
Victor Powell	Northern Caribbean University	Junior McCulskie	University of the West Indies
Alaina Reid	University of the West Indies	Karma abdul	Heart College of Beauty Services
Revone Hutchinson	Manchester High School	Yasmin Johnson	University of the West Indies

Jonathan Atkins	Meadowbrook High Scholl	Yasheka Johnson	Northern Caribbean University
Julian Walker	N/A	Denee Murray	Excelsior Community College
Exevial Smith	Green Island High School	Cliffon Pryce	DeCarteret College
Shanea Johnson	N/A	Amelia Gordon	GC Foster College
Jaeda Curtis	DeCarteret College	Raihn McNish	University of the West Indies
Chad Rattray	Kingston College	Shanice Letts	Excelsior Community College
Shamar Mundell	St. Jago High School	Shanice Stephens	N/A
Jordane Gordon	University of the West Indies	Saige Stephenson	University of the West Indies
Racquille Pinto	N/A	Shenelle O'Connor	N/A
Steven Palmer	DeCarteret College	Saige Stephenson	University of the West Indies
Trae Sullivan	DeCarteret College	Natidra Edwards	Kemps Hill High
Goldiana Walker	Edwin Allen High	Alecia Brown	Kellits High
Adrian Wallace	Eltham High	Demoy Lindo	Denbigh High
Alexy Chance	Dintill High	Jaidenn Williams	Utech
Danica Johnson	Garvey Maceo High	Petagaye Mckenzie	Ascot High

#### Kenya

Name	First Name	Position	Organisation	Stakeholder Category
Ndungu	George	Director/Team leader	YAS! Network	ACT!2030 Implementing Partner
Mutile	Wilter	Programs Officer	Fortress of Hope Africa	ACT!2030 / Partner
Otieno	Shem		Mathare North Youth Organization	ACT!2030 / Partner
Kadot	Doris	Volunteer and Member and HTS provider	FHOK	ACT!2030 / Partner
Bulalu	Silvia	Youth Champion	DSW Kenya	ACT!2030 / Partner
Kyalo	Jim		Light Of Hope Youth Initiative International	ACT!2030 / Partner
Amondi	Joyce	Team Leader, Machakos	Sauti Skika	ACT!2030 / Partner
Kateri	Aluda	Volunteer	Young Achievers Network	ACT!2030 / Partner
Kageha	Olivia	Youth Leader	Youth Changers Kenya	Data Reporter / Youth Beneficary
Nyawanga	Farida	Youth Advocate	Nairobits Trust	Data Reporter / Youth Beneficary
Ndanu	Racheal	Volunteer	NYC - FHOK	Data Reporter / Youth Beneficary
Muggi	Nancy	Founder	The Aries Initative	Data Reporter
Mayende	Irene	Youth Leader	MANYO	Data Reporter / Youth Beneficary
Kateri	Aluda	Youth Advocate	Youth Achievers Network	Data Reporter / Youth Beneficary
Mwangi	Lisa Mary Anne	Youth Leader	MADACI	Data Reporter / Youth Beneficary
Otina	Shem Otieno	Program Assistant	Mathare Youth Organisation	Data Reporter
Natse	Fatinato	Youth Advocate	CSA	Data Reporter / Youth Beneficary

Waithera	Kelvin Irungu	Youth Advocate		Data Reporter / Youth Beneficary
Bulemi	Aquilina Lucy	Youth Leader	YIKE	Data Reporter / Youth Beneficary
Ombogo	Hilda	Youth Advocate		Data Reporter / Youth Beneficary
Malick	Abdy	Youth Advocate		Data Reporter / Youth Beneficary
Onyango	Gentrix Adhiambo	Youth advocate	Egerton University	Data Reporter / Youth Beneficary
Ruhiu	Solomon	Project Officer	Youth Achievers Network	Data Reporter / Youth Beneficary
Patrick	Jeanne	Programs Manager MOH ASRHR	МОН	External Partner
Sindani	Juma	МОН	Ruaraka Sub County	External Partner/Government Health Stakeholder
Osore	Faith		UNFPA	External Partner

#### Mexico

Surname	First name	Position	Organisation	Stakeholder Category
Martinez	Tania	Coordinator	ACT!2030 Mexico	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
Baruch	Ricardo	Coordinator	ACT!2030 Mexico	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
Barra	Aram	Coordinator	ACT!2030 Mexico	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
Reyes	Emilia	Gender Policies and Public Budget Coordinator	Gender Equity: Citizenship, Work and Family	Stakeholder
Gaeta Rivera	Andres	Project Management Advisor	Centro de Servicios Ser	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
	Efrain	Member	COMAC	ACT!2030 Member / Partner

Diaz Castro	Francisco	Member	Sisex	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
Arellano	Javier	Coordinator	UNAIDS and UNFPA Mexico	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
Caporal	Raul	Member	Mexican Alliance of Youth Living with HIV	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
Espinoza	Leonardo	Director	Codise	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
	Aurora	Member	Codise	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
	David	Member	Codise	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
Vazquez	Salvador	General Coordination of External Strategic Management	My World	Stakeholder
Trigos	Monica	Division of Campaigns	My World	Stakeholder
Ayuso Audry	Adolfo	2030 Agenda General Director	Office of The Presidency	Stakeholder
Lopez	Agustin	Director of Prevention and Social Participation	CENSIDA	Stakeholder
Zarraga	Roberto	Liaison Coordinator	GYAN	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
Baños Rivas	Luz Elena	General Director	Minister of Foreign Affairs	Stakeholders
Cisneros Cuervo	Pedro	Liaison General Adjunct Director	Minister of Foreign Affairs	Stakeholders
	Adrian	Member	ACT!2030 Mexico	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
	Alheli	Member	ACT!2030 Mexico	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
	Emma	Member	ACT!2030 Mexico	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
	Enrique	Member	ACT!2030 Mexico	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
Baeza	Roberto	Advocacy and Lobbing Coordinator	Arcoiris	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
Aviles Ortega	Andrea	Research Coordinator	Arcoiris	ACT!2030 Member / Partner

Valencia Toledano	Josefina	General Coordinator	El Closet de Sor Juana	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
Medinilla Corzo	Rodrigo	Equity and Youth Services Sub Director	IMJUVE	Stakeholder
Ruiz Hernandez	Jose Antonio	Youth Officer	UNFPA	Stakeholder

## Nigeria

Surname	First name	Position	Organisation	Stakeholder Category
Mohammed	Isah	National Coordinator	APYIN (Association of Positive Youths Living with HIV/AIDS in Nigeria)	ACT!2030 Partner
Bako	Hosea	Youth Advocate/Alliance Member	Education as a Vaccine	ACT!2030 Member
Owosenni	Roseline	Alliance Member	Education as a Vaccine	ACT!2030 Member
Izundu	Kosi	Program Manager/ACT Former Coordinator	Education as a Vaccine	Other Stakeholders
В	Harry. S	Head, Corporate Planning & Technical Coordination Department	National Bureau of Statistics	ACT!2030 Partner
Ayoola	Lanre		GASHE (Federal Ministry of Health)	ACT!2030 Partner
Anslem	Precious	Alliance Member	Education as a Vaccine	ACT!2030 Member
Amosun	Tobi	Alliance Member	Education as a Vaccine	ACT!2030 Member
Angulu	Christiana	Alliance Member	Education as a Vaccine	ACT!2030 Member

Oguntola	Kayode	Alliance Member	Education as a Vaccine	ACT!2030 Member
Sukanmi	Michael	Data Reporter		Other Stakeholder
Enwenyeokwu	Genesis	Data Reporter		Other Stakeholder
Ugwumba	Ikenna	Data Reporter		Other Stakeholder
Umoh	Edidiong	Data Reporter		Other Stakeholder
Ohia	Christophe	Data Reporter		Other Stakeholder
Dauda	Chiroma Bulus	Data Reporter		Other Stakeholder

#### **Philippines**

Surname	Name	Position	Organisation	Stakeholder Category
Santuille	Dave	Executive Director	International Youth Council Pilipinas, Inc.	ACT!2030 Alliance Member / Partner
Turalde	Jona	Deputy Director for Administration and Finance	International Youth Council Pilipinas, Inc.	ACT!2030 Alliance Member / Partner
Asakil	Aliah-Zaira	Member	International Youth Council Pilipinas, Inc.	Beneficiary
Quesada- Bondad	Amara	Executive Director	Action for Health Initiatives (ACHIEVE), Inc.	ACT!2030 Alliance Member / Partner
Caparida	Jay Arian	President	Peer Educators Movement for Empowerment of Pasay, Manila, Caloocan and Quezon City (Peer Ed ME PAMACQ)	ACT!2030 Alliance Member / Partner
Vargas	Mary Jane	Chairperson	Active-Youth for GENder Development Advocacy	ACT!2030 Alliance Member / Partner

			(AGENDA)	
Tubianosa	Lemari	President	Quezon City High School - Supreme Student Government (QCHS-SSG)	ACT!2030 Alliance Member / Partner
Dela Cruz	Charm	Youth Head	LGBT Pilipinas, Inc.	ACT!2030 Alliance Member / Partner
Demasuay	Kliezl Joie	Youth President	Family Planning Organization of the Philippines (FPOP) - Metro Manila Chapter	ACT!2030 Alliance Member / Partner
Lopez	Anthony	Project Manager	Capiz Youth for Sexual and Reproductive Health and Rights (Y-Cap for SRHR)	ACT!2030 Alliance Member / Partner
Vinluan	Minerva	Medical Specialist IV and Program Manager - AHDP	Department of Health (DOH) - Family Health Office	Other Stakeholders (Government Agencies)
Samonte	Genesis May	OIC-Division Chief	Department of Health (DOH) - Epidemiology Bureau	Other Stakeholders (Government Agencies)
Mojica	Normina	Planning Officer	Council for the Welfare of Children (CWC)	Other Stakeholders (Government Agencies)
Peñaflor	Rhea	Commissioner representing Visayas	National Youth Commission (NYC)	Other Stakeholders (Government Agencies)
Masilang	Rosalie	Supervising Education Program Specialist	Department of Education (DepEd) - Curriculum Standards Development Division - Bureau of Curriculum Development	Other Stakeholders (Government Agencies)
Antiquera	Reigner Jireh	Chairperson	Alliance of Young Nurse Leaders and Advocates International, Inc. (AYNLA)	Other Stakeholders (Civil Society Organizations)
Senoc	Nandy	Executive Director	Family Planning Organization of the Philippines (FPOP)	Other Stakeholders (Civil Society Organizations)

Melgar	Junice	Executive Director	Likhaan Center for Women's Health	Other Stakeholders (Civil Society Organizations)
Cuisina-Cruz	Erlinda	President	Society Adolescent Medicine of the Philippines	Other Stakeholders (Civil Society Organizations)
Samson	Ralph Ivan	President	Youth Peer Education Network Pilipinas (Y-PEER Pilipinas)	Other Stakeholders (Civil Society Organizations)
Quintos	Lourdes	Program Associate	Joint United Nations Programme on HIV/AIDS (UNAIDS) Philippines	Other Stakeholders (Development Partners)
Balibago	Mario	HIV Programme Officer	United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF)	Other Stakeholders (Development Partners)

Name	Organization	Position
Action for Health Initiatives (ACHIEVE), Inc.	Amara Quesada-Bondad	Executive Director
Peer Educators Movement for Empowerment of Pasay, Manila, Caloocan and Quezon City (Peer Ed ME PAMACQ)	Jay Arian C. Caparida	President
International Youth Council Pilipinas (IYCPI)	Dave Santuile	Executive Director
Active-Youth for GENder Development Advocacy (AGENDA)	Mary Jane Vargas	Chairperson
Quezon City High School - Supreme Student Government (QCHS-SSG)	Lemari Tubianosa	President
LGBT Pilipinas, Inc.	Charm Dela Cruz	Youth Head
Family Planning Organization of the Philippines (FPOP) - Metro Manila Chapter	Kliezl Joie S. Demasuay	Youth President
Capiz Youth for Sexual and Reproductive Health and Rights (Y-Cap for SRHR)	Anthony Lopez	Project Manager

Department of Health (DOH) - Family Health Office	Dr. Minerva Vinluan	Medical Specialist IV and Program Manager - AHDP
Department of Health (DOH) - Epidemiology Bureau	Dr. Genesis May Samonte, MD, MSc, PHSAE	OIC-Division Chief
Council for the Welfare of Children (CWC)	Ms. Normina Mojica	Planning Officer
National Youth Commission (NYC)	Comm. Rhea B. Peñaflor	Commissioner representing Visayas
Department of Education (DepEd) - Curriculum Standards Development Division - Bureau of Curriculum Development	Ms. Rosalie B. Masilang, PhD.	Supervising Education Program Specialist
Alliance of Young Nurse Leaders and Advocates International, Inc. (AYNLA)	Mr. Reigner Jireh Antiquera	Chairperson
Family Planning Organization of the Philippines (FPOP)	Mr. Nandy Senoc	Executive Director
Likhaan Center for Women's Health	Dr. Junice Melgar	Executive Director
Society Adolescent Medicine of the Philippines	Dr. Erlinda Cuisina-Cruz	President
Youth Peer Education Network Pilipinas (Y-PEER Pilipinas)	Mr. Ralph Ivan Samson	President
Joint United Nations Programme on HIV/AIDS (UNAIDS) Philippines	Ma. Lourdes L. Quintos	Program Associate
United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF)	Mx. Mario Balibago	HIV Programme Officer

## Uganda

Surname	First name	Position	Organisation	Stakeholder Category
Kyenkudwa	Allen	Lead Programmes team	CSYRA Uganda	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
Niwagaba	Nicholas	Executive Director	UNYPA	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
Banura	Amanda	Co-founder	UYAFPHA	Youth Beneficiary
mayende	lam		Government Stakeholder	Other Stakeholder
Bwire	Moses			Youth Beneficiary
Yosia	Mwesi			

Surname	First name	Organisation	Surname	First name	Organisation
Mwesi	Yosia	UDHF-Butaleja	Moses	Dalia	CSYRA
Bwogo	Eria	KIMSAT	Nababi	Hamidah	CSYRA
Lamtoo	Clifton.G.	KIU	Kamina	Kasim	Butaleja
Flyor	Luzinda	TEU	Menya	Farouk	Iganga
Bad	Black	F4TWLIAY	Bogere	Muzamiru	Iganga
Bwire	Moses	PEERU	Byamukisa	Emmanuel	Busia
Niwagaba	Nicholas	UNYPA	Kakuru	Julius	Kampala
Otafiire	Henry	RAYD	Mirembe	Jovia	Kampala
Aboneka	Micheal	UNNGOF	Nabukya	Roy	Kampala
Apio	Joan	MCU	Tibiita	Richard	Kamuli
Banura	Joan Amanda	UYAFPAH	Wambi	Franco	Iganga

Tumwebaze	Charles	TAHI	Kataike	Daphine	Buyende
Namanda	Esther	JCUC	Nabatanzi	Christine	Buyende
Joelle	Reid	MUSI/IFMSA	Ntumba	Charles	Buyende
Kukundawe	Allen	RAHU	Amagoro	Martha	Ngora
Chigom	Winfred	WRA	Namange	Agnes	Butaleja
Kulabako	Phiona	UYAHF	Oburu	Martin Wanga	Mukono
Ntabadde	Kauthara	MUST/IFMSA	Biso	Rogers	Kamuli
Mariam	Nassaka	CSYRA-Uganda	Kakande	Aisha	Mukono
Luswata	Brant	IBT	Okello	Stephen	Ngora
Bwire	Charles	CSYRA	Okiror	Emmanuel	Ngora
Nakiyaga	Robina Janet	Ndejje	Mudiya	Samuel	Butaleja
Ondeda	Dyllis	Busia	Namusisi	Moreen	Busia
Menya	Bashir	Kamuli	Wabwire	Fred	Busia
Gimbo	Monica	Busia	Hashim	Kim	Busia
Moses	Dalia	Busia	Awino	Hanifa	Butaleja
Namono	Josephine	Butaleja	Nandera	Peace	Iganga
Tumwekiriza	Issac	Buyende	Bwire	Allan	Iganga

#### Zambia

Name	Organisation	Stakeholder Category
Luchembe Chilufya	Accountability Advocates Zambia (AAZ)	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
Maimpa Mumba	Public Health Association of Zambia (PHAZ)	Youth Beneficiary
Shuko Musemangezhi	Zambia Association of Literacy (ZALIT)	Other Stakeholder
Ganizani Mwale	University of Zambia HIV/AIDS Response	
Chilufya Hampongo	Treatment Advocacy and Literacy Campaign (TALC)	
Zirose Zulu	Family Health Trust	
Maimbo Kalenga	Afya Mzuri	
Nkosana Zulu	Edutainment Foundation Zambia	
Henry Kabwe	Media Network of Childrens Rights and Development	
Nelson Mumbi	Africa Directions	
Vincent Nacidze	Center for Reproductive Health and Education	
Anita McWilliams	СНАМР	
Lester Phiri	Planned Parenthood Association of Zambia	
Mwenya Nshitima	Forum for African Women Educationalists of Zambia	
Michelle Malunga	Q fm Q tv	
Mubanga Chimumbwa	Network of Zambian People Living with HIV (NZP+)	

#### **Zimbabwe**

Name	Institution/Organization	Туре	Type of institution/organization
Tamara Johnsson	Youth and Key Populations Officer at UNAIDS Zimbabwe	Technical Partner	UN Agency
Tendai Mharadze	Former Community Mobilisation Adviser at UNAIDS Zimbabwe	Technical Partner	UN Agency
Oscar Mundida	Zimbabw Country Coordinating Mechanism	Technical Partner / Youth Engage/ACT!2030 Alliance	Coordinating Mechanism
Fadzai Mawunganidze	KatsweSistahood	Partner and Member / Youth Engage/ACT!2030 Alliance	Women Organisation
Mr Nyaguse	Ministry of Macro and Economic Development	Technical Partner / Youth Engage/ACT!2030 Alliance	Gvt
Annah Sango	ICW/Y+	Partner and Member / Youth Engage/ACT!2030 Alliance	Women Living With HIV Organisation
Kelvin Makura	Y+	Partner and Member / Youth Engage/ACT!2030 Alliance	Young People Living With HIV
Mayita	Gays and Lesbians Association of Zimbabwe	Partner and Member / Youth Engage/ACT!2030 Alliance	LGBTI organisation
Gumiso Bonzo	Transsmart		Trans Network
Leonard Mandishora NANGO	National Association of Non Governmental Organisations	Partner and Member / Youth Engage/ACT!2030 Alliance	
Taurai Nyandoro	Zimbabwe AIDS Network	Partner and Member / Youth Engage/ACT!2030 Alliance	
Martha Tholanah	International Community of Women Living with HIV		

Nyasha Phanisa Sithole	Africaid/Zvandiri Programme	
Onward Chironda	My Age Zimbabwe	
Janet Bhila	Youth Activist	
Jane Batte	UNAIDS	
Sungano Chisina	Zimbabwe Youth Council	
Dorothy Marongwe	Women AIDS Support Network	
Deloune Matongo	AVAC Fellow	
Patrick Miller	Youth Activist	
Charles Siwela	ACT National Coordinator	
Ignatious	ACT	
Aveneni	ASRH coordinator Ministry of Health	
Tendaishe	RHRN	

Direct Beneficiaries List					
Name	Name	Name	Name		
Chido Rusike	Michael Chimusoro	Brenda Seremani	Tsitsi Mukuzo		
Godwill Zulu	Propitious Ndhlovu	Blessing Phiri	Courage Zinyoni		
Evans Butau	Macdonald Kambuzuma	Hilton Samkange	Charles Fore		
Moses Gondwa	Nkomo Hendrick	Princess Mharire	Silas Manjera		
Atisha Shayahama	Rashid Shaibu	Tarisai Govere	Prosper Chaparapata		

Chenjerai Kanhukamwe	Tadisa Muchavhaira	Rumbidzai Chidora	Gladys Chiwozwa
Sithokozile Tshuma	Tariro Gura	Precious Kahungura	Nometter Annie Chimuti
Susan Mudyiwa	Kudzaishe Nyamakura	Gracious Maingire	Viola Jonga
Brghtwell Mbulawa	Beveny Lameck	Paradzai Bornwell	Samantha Mandaza
Sehlisiwe Ncube	Faith Kabvuranyuchi	Brian Chiwapura	Handsome Phuti
Receive Nyamutsamba	Tinashe Mashayamombe	_	-

#### **Annex 2: Interviewee stakeholder lists**

The below table lists all stakeholders interviewed for this consultancy.

#### Algeria

Surname	First name	Position	Organisation	Stakeholder Category
Aissani	Mohamed	Peer Educator	MSM Network	Youth Beneficiary
Mansouri	Nassim	Young Data Reporter	National Alliance	ACT!2030 Member
Smaili	Raouf Walid	Supervisor	National Alliance	ACT!2030 Member
Kamel	Abderraouf	National Coordinator	National Alliance	ACT!2030 Member

## Bulgaria

Surname	First name	Position	Organisation	Stakeholder Category
Stamenkova	Radosveta	Director	Bulgarian Family Planning Association	ACT!2030 Partner / NGO
Borisova	Ivelina		Youth parliament Gorna Oriahovica	Youth Beneficiary
Chileva	Anina	Program coordinator	National Centre of Public Health and Analysis	Governmental
Popkostadinova	Nikoleta	Director	Learn Foundation	ACT!2030 Partner

#### India

Surname	First name	Position	Organisation	Stakeholder Category
Singh	Abhinav			Partner
Tripathi	Siddharth	Key Alliance Member, representative of S4G		
Keshari	Ridhhima			Data Reporter
Kumar	Akhil			Youth Beneficiary
Shrikant	Agrawal	Alliance Member	MYKS	
Uttakrish		Coordinator for Alliance Members	ACT!India	

#### Jamaica

Surname	First name	Position	Organisation	Stakeholder Category
Andrew	Paige	ige Associate Director WE-Change Or		Other Stakeholder
Nelson	Jaevion	Executive Director	JFLAG	Other Stakeholder
Watson	Alnastaizia		JYAN	Youth Beneficiary
Mclean	Neish	Executive Director	Transwave	Other Stakeholder
Patrick	Jumoke	Executive Director	JN+	Other Stakeholder
Green	Renae	JYAN Council Member	JYAN	Youth Beneficiary

#### Mexico

Surname	First name	Position	Organisation	Stakeholder Category
Baruch	Ricardo	Coordinator	ACT!2030 Mexico	ACT!2030 Member/Partner
Barra	Aram	Coordinator	ACT!2030 Mexico	ACT!2030 Member/Partner
Reyes	Emilia	Gender Policies and Public Budget Coordinator		
Gaeta Rivera	Andres	Project Management Advisor	Centro de Servicios Ser	ACT!2030 Member/Partner
	Efrain	Member	COMAC	ACT!2030 Member/Partner
Diaz Castro	Francisco	Member	Sisex	ACT!2030 Member/Partner
Arellano	Javier	Coordinator	UNAIDS and UNFPA Mexico	ACT!2030 Member/Partner
Caporal	Raul	Member	Mexican Alliance of Youth Living With HIV	ACT!2030 Member/Partner
Espinoza	Leonardo	Director	Codise	ACT!2030 Member/Partner
	Aurora	Member	Codise	ACT!2030 Member/Partner
	David	Member	Codise	ACT!2030 Member/Partner
Vazquez	Salvador	General Coordination of External Strategic Management	My World	Stakeholder
Trigos	Monica	Division of Campaigns	My World	Stakeholder
Ayuso Audry	Adolfo	2030 Agenda General Director	Office of the presidency	Stakeholder
Lopez	Agustin	Director of Prevention and Social Participation	CENSIDA	Stakeholder
Zarraga	Roberto	Liaison Coordinator	GYAN	ACT!2030 Member/Partner
Baños Rivas	Luz Elena	General Director	Minister of Foreign Affairs	Stakeholders

Cisneros Cuervo	Pedro	Liaison General Adjunct Director	Minister of Foreign Affairs	Stakeholders
	Adrian	Member	ACT!2030 Mexico	ACT!2030 Member/Partner
	Alheli	Member	ACT!2030 Mexico	ACT!2030 Member/Partner
	Emma	Member	ACT!2030 Mexico	ACT!2030 Member/Partner
	Enrique	Member	ACT!2030 Mexico	ACT!2030 Member/Partner
Baeza	Roberto	Advocacy and Lobbing Coordinator	Arcoiris	ACT!2030 Member/Partner
Aviles Ortega	Andrea	Research Coordinator	Arcoiris	ACT!2030 Member/Partner
Valencia Toledano	Josefina	General Coordinator	El Closet de Sor Juana	ACT!2030 Member/Partner
Medinilla Corzo	Rodrigo	Equity and Youth Services Sub Director	IMJUVE	Stakeholder
Ruiz Hernandez	Jose Antonio	Youth Officer	UNFPA	Stakeholder

## Kenya

Surname	First name	Position	Organisation	Stakeholder Category
Ndungu	George	Director/Team Leader	YAS Network	ACT!2030 Implementing Partner
Kathia	Doris	Volunteer,HTS Counselor	FHOK	Partner
Otina	Shem	Program Assistant	Mathare Youth Organisation	Data Reporter
Muggi	Nancy	Founder	The Aries Initiative	Data Reporter
Dr. Sindai	Juma	МОН	Ruaraka Subcounty	Government Health Stakeholder

## Nigeria

Surname	First name	Position	Organisation	Stakeholder Category
Mohammed	Isah	National Coordinator	APYIN (Association of Positive Youths Living with HIV/AIDS in Nigeria)	ACT!2030 Partner
Bako	Hosea	Youth Advocate/Alliance Member	Education as a Vaccine	ACT!2030 Member
Owoseeri	Roseline	Alliance Member	Education as a Vaccine	ACT!2030 Member
Izundu	Kosi	Program Manager/ACT Former Coordinator	Education as a Vaccine	Other Stakeholders

## **Philippines**

Surname	First name	Position	Organisation	Stakeholder Category
Santuille	Dave Executive Director		International Youth Council	ACT!2030 Alliance Member /
Garitanic	Dave	.xecutive Director	Pilipinas, Inc.	Partner
Turalde	Jona	Deputy Director for	International Youth Council	ACT!2030 Alliance Member /
Turalue	Julia	Administration and Finance	Pilipinas, Inc.	Partner
Asakil	Aliah-Zaira	Member	International Youth Council	Beneficiary
Moanii	Allali-Lalla	INICITIDE	Pilipinas, Inc.	Deficionary

#### **South Africa**

Surname	First name	Position	Organisation	Stakeholder Category
Nthuli	Tabita	Community Mobilisation and Networking Advisor	UNAIDS Country Office	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
Singh	Levi	National Youth Focal Point for the Alliance in SA	Afriyan	ACT!2030 Member / Partner

## Uganda

Surname	First name	Position	Organisation	Stakeholder Category
Kyenkudwa	Allen	Lead Programmes Team	CSYRA Uganda	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
Niwagaba	Nicholas	Executive Director	UNYPA	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
Banura	Amanda	Co-founder	UYAFPHA	Youth Beneficiary

#### Zambia

Surname	First name	Position	Organisation	Stakeholder Category
Longolongo	Mary	Chairperson	UNZA Response	ACT!2030 Member / Partner
Chitambala	Chimwemwe	University Student		Youth Beneficiary
Musonda	Tom	Data Reporter		Youth Beneficiary
Mutale	Kakuwa	Senior Youth Development Officer	Ministry of Youth and Sport	Other Stakeholders

#### **Zimbabwe**

Surname	Name	Institution/Organization	Stakeholder Category
Johnsson	Tamara	Youth and Key Populations Officer at UNAIDS Zimbabwe	Technical Partner
Mharadze	Tendai	Former Community Mobilisation Adviser at UNAIDS Zimbabwe	Technical Partner
Mawunganidze	Fadzai	KatsweSistahood	Partner and Member / Youth Engage/ACT!2030 Alliance
Nyaguse		Ministry of Macro and Economic Development	Technical Partner / Youth Engage/ACT!2030 Alliance
Sango	Anna	ICW/Y+	Partner and Member / Youth Engage/ACT!2030 Alliance
Makura	Kelvin	Y+	Partner and Member / Youth Engage/ACT!2030 Alliance
	Mayita	Gays and Lesbians Association of Zimbabwe	Partner and Member / Youth Engage/ACT!2030 Alliance
hila	Janet B	Youth Activist	
Matongo	Deloune	AVAC Fellow	
Giyava	Charity	ACT National Coordinator	
Ngwenya	Ashley	ACT National Coordinator	
Siwela	Charles	ACT National Coordinator	
Chiveso	Ignatious Tafadzwa	ACT National Coordinator	
Magombe	Aveneni	ASRH coordinator Ministry of Health	

Changamire	Tendaishe	Right Here Right Now (RHRN)		
Regede	Clarissa	Zimbabwe Lawyers for Human Rights		
Boadi	Emmanuel	UNDP		
Msungwa	Sarah	UNDP		

Direct Beneficiaries List							
Name Name Name Name							
Chido Rusike	Moses Gondwa	Michael Chimusoro	Tadisa Muchavhaira	Prosper Chaparapata			
Princess Mharire	Precious Kahungura	Brian Chiwapura	Courage Zinyoni				

# e-Roundtable Stakeholders

Country/Region	Name	Country/Region	Name
Algeria	Raouf Kamel	South Africa	Siyabonga Nzimande
Bulgaria	Milena Zaharieva	Uganda	Allen Kyendikuwa
India	Abbhinaav Siingh	Zambia	Vincent Simangolwa Monde
Jamaica	Christopher Harper	Zimbabwe	Charity Giyava
Kenya	Alvin Mwangi	LAC	Alicia Sanchez
Mexico	Tania Martínez	AP	Aries Valeriano
Nigeria	Ekanem Itoro Effiong	MENA	Rupa Bhadra
Philippines	Jay Arian C. Caparida	WECA	Kodo Ngabane

#### **Annex 3: References**

The below table lists all documents and literature reviewed for this evaluation divided including the global, regional and country levels.

#### **Global Bibliography**

- 1. ACT!2015. Blog-Your-Action Checklist. 1p.
- 2. ACT!2015. Communications Strategy. March 2015. 4p.
- 3. ACT!2015. Social Media Toolkit . November 2014. 10p.
- 4. ACT!2015. Survey: Perceptions of the National ACT!2015 Alliance. 2p.
- 5. ACT!2015. Monitoring and Evaluating ACT!2015 Phase 2 : Refection Paper. November 2014. 4p.
- 6. ACT!2015. Phase 3 M&E Framework. 1p.
- 7. ACT!2015, IPPF WHR, UNAIDS. Evaluating Political Advocacy. 29 October 2014. 3p.
- 8. ACT!2015. Phase 2: Assessment Criteria. November 2014. 4p.
- 9. ACT!2015, PACT. Working Group. 21 January 2015. 2p.
- 10. ACT!2015, PACT. Working Group Call. 11 November 2014. 4p.
- 11. ACT!2015, PACT. Working Group Call. 5 December 2014. 2p.
- 12. PACT. PACT Book. October 2014. 13p.
- 13. PACT. Countries of Interest. 1p.
- 14. ACT!2015. ACT!2015: Global Coordination Meeting 16 19 September 2014. 11p.
- 15. ACT!2015. Meeting Evaluation Analysis. 3p.
- 16. ACT!2015. ACT!2015 Global Coordination Meeting Report. 2014. 11p.
- 17. Restless Development, The Commonwealth. Youth-led Accountability for the SDGs. London:2016. 36p.
- 18. Hildebrand M, Ahumada C, Watson S. CrowdOutAIDS: Crowdsourcing Youth Perspectives for Action. Reproductive Health Matters [Internet]. 2013. 12p. Available from: DOI: 10.1016/S0968-8080(13)41687-7
- 19. PACT, UNAIDS. From Roots to Reality: a Snapshot of ACT!2015's Achievements. February 2016. 22p.
- 20. ACT!2015. Annex 1 : Terms of Reference ACT!2015 Partner Organisation November 2015 December 2017. 6p.

- 21. ACT!2030. ACT!2030 Youth-led, Data-driven Accountability for the 2030 Agenda. 1p.
- 22. ACT!2015, IPPF. Communications Strategy. May 2016. 2p.
- 23. ACT!2015. How do I get onto my Government's Delegation to the United Nations? 4p.
- 24. ACT!2015. The Programme Funding Agreement for the ACT!2015 Phase Four Coordination. 2015. 13p.
- 25. ACT!2015. Partner Budget. 3p.
- 26. ACT!2015. PFA Detailed Budget. 3p.
- 27. ACT!2015. ACT!2015: Keys to successful Youth-led Advocacy. 2p.
- 28. ACT!2015. Technical Report January March 2015. 10p.
- 29. ACT!2015. Annex to Interim Report Swiss Grant Dec 2015 June 2016. p. 5
- 30. UNAIDS. ACT!2015 Project Report 1<sup>st</sup> January 31<sup>st</sup> December 2016. March 2017. 17p.
- 31. UNAIDS. Project Proposal for the Government of Switzerland (Swiss Agency for Development and Cooperation). 2015. 31 p.
- 32. ACT!2015, The PACT. ACT!2015: Aims and Objectives. 2017. 1p.
- 33. Swiss TPH, UNAIDS. End Review of ACT!2030 Phases 1-4: Youth-led, Data-driven Accountability for the Sustainable Development Goals. Inception Report. Switzerland. 05 February 2018. 36p.
- 34. Reporting Summary. Geneva (Switzerland). 1p.
- 35. ACT!2015. ACT!2015 Global Coordination Meeting 19<sup>th</sup> 21<sup>st</sup> October 2016, Dehli, India. December 2016. 15p.

# Bibliography - Algeria

- 1. ACT!2015 Algeria. ACT!2015 Interim Financial Report. Algeria: 14.07. 2016. 1p.
- 2. ACT!2015. ACT!2015 Partner Organisation: November 2015 December 2017. 6p.
- 3. ACT!2015. How do I get onto my Government's Delegation to the United Nations? 4p.
- 4. ACT!2015. The Programme Funding Agreement for the ACT!2015 Phase 4 Coordination. 13p.
- 5. ACT!2015. Technical Report: January March 2015. 10p.
- 6. ACT!2015, IPPF. Communications Strategy. 2p.
- 7. ACT!2030 Algeria. ACT!2030 Final Project Report. January 2018. 7p
- 8. ACT!2030 Algeria. ACT!2030 Project Report: August 2017. Algeria. August 2017. 4p.

- 9. ACT!2030 Algeria. ACT!2030 Project Report: April 2017. Algeria. April 2017. 4p.
- 10. ACT!2030 Algeria. Tools of the Trade: How Partnership, Accountability and Indicators shaped ACT!2015 Algeria's Approach to Advocacy. 2015. 2p.
- 11. ACT!2030 Algeria. Workshop for Capacity Building on the 2030 Development Agenda. Algiers (Algeria): 2016. 5p.
- 12. ACT!2030. Youth-led, Data-driven Accountability for the 2030 Agenda. 1p.
- 13. AIDS Algérie. Activity Update Report. Algeria. December 2015 July 2016. 4p.
- 14. AIDS Algeria. World AIDS Day: Getting creative in the AIDS Response! Algeria. 1p.
- 15. PACT, UNAIDS. From Roots to Reality : a Snapshot of ACT!2015's Achievements. February 2016. 22p.
- 16. Swiss Grant. Annex to Interim Report. December 2015 June 2016. 5p.
- 17. UNAIDS. ACT!2015 Project Report. 1st January 31st December 2016. 17p.
- 18. UNAIDS Algeria. National Strategic Plan 2016 -2020. Algiers (Algeria): 2016. 64p.
- 19. UNAIDS. Project Proposal for the Government of Switzerland (Swiss Agency for Development and Cooperation). 31p.
- 20. ACT!2015. Brief Algeria. AIDS Algeria. 2015. 2p.

# **Bibliography – Bulgaria**

- 1. ACT!2030 Bulgaria. Regional Advocacy Strategy Workshop: Building National Youth Alliances in Eastern Europe and Central Asia to advocate for HIV and Sexual and Reproductive Health and Rights in Post 2015 3-5 September 2014. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2014. 2p.
- 2. ACT!2030 Bulgaria. Programmatic Report 1 July 31 December 2014. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2015. 8p.
- 3. ACT!2030 Bulgaria. Activity Update Report January March 2015. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2015. 7p.
- 4. ACT!2030 Bulgaria. Activity Update Report April October 2015. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2015. 9p.
- 5. ACT!2030 Bulgaria. Blog Entry: Youth-Adult Partnership in Bulgaria. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2015. 1p.
- 6. ACT!2030 Bulgaria. Training Report: Data Collection and Advocacy, 28-29 September 2017. Sofia (Bulgaria):2017. 2p.
- 7. ACT!2030 Bulgaria. Brief: Bulgaria SMART Foundation. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2015. 2p.
- 8. ACT!2030 Bulgaria. Activity Update Report January December 2015. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2015. 10p.

- 9. ACT!2030 Bulgaria. Activity Update Report December 2015 July 2016. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2016. 6p.
- ACT!2030 Bulgaria. Activity Update Report December 2016

   April 2017. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2017. 5p.
- 11. ACT!2030 Bulgaria. Activity Update Report August 2017. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2017. 3p.
- 12. ACT!2015. From Roots to Reality: A Snapshot of ACT!2015's Achievement. February 2016. 22 p.
- 13. ACT!2015. ACT!2015 Partner Organisation November 2015 December 2017. 2015. 6 p.
- 14. ACT!2015. Communication Strategy. 2 p.
- 15. ACT!2030. ACT!2030. Youth-led, Data-driven Accountability for the 2030 Agenda. 2017. 1 p.
- 16. UNFPA. State of World Population. 2014. 4 p.
- 17. ACT!2015. How do I get onto my Government's delegation to the United Nations? 4p.
- 18. ACTI!2015. The Programme Funding Agreement for the ACT!2015 Phase 4 Coordination. 2015. 13p.
- 19. Mladenov P. Lobbying Points on why young People should be included in the national Delegations of the Member-States Countries. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2014. 2 p.
- 20. ACT!2015 Bulgaria. Detailed Budget. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2016. 1 p.
- 21. ACT!2015 Bulgaria. Summary Budget Phase 4 (November 2015 December 2017). Sofia (Bulgaria): 2015. 1 p.
- 22. UNAIDS. Project Proposal for the Government of Switzerland (Swiss Agency for Development and Cooperation). 2015. 31 p.
- 23. Andreeva M., Mladenov P. Statement by the Bulgarian Youth Delegates at 52<sup>nd</sup> session of the Commission for Social Development. New York (USA): 2014. 3 p.
- 24. Youth Peer Education Network. Statement by the international Peer Education Network at the 47<sup>th</sup> session of the UN Commission for Population and Development. 2014. 2 p.
- 25. Andreeva M., Mladenov P. Statement by the Bulgarian Youth Delegates at 68<sup>th</sup> session of the Commission of the United Nations General Assembly. New York: 2013. 3 p.
- 26. ACT!2015 Bulgaria. ACT!2015 Interim Financial Report. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2016. 1 p.
- 27. ACT!2030 Bulgaria. ACT!2030 Financial Report: August 2017. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2017. 1 p.
- 28. ACT!2015 Bulgaria. ACT!2015 Interim Financial Report. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2016. 1 p.
- 29. ACT!2015 Bulgaria. ACT!2015 Financial Report November 2016 August 2017: 2017. 1 p.

- 30. ACT!2030 Bulgaria. Alliance Members. Sofa (Bulgaria): 2016. 7 p.
- 31. ACT!2030 Bulgaria. ACT! 2030 Implementation Plan. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2015. p. 10
- 32. ACT!2030. Reporting Summary. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2016. p. 10
- 33. ACT!2015 Bulgaria. Survey: Perceptions of the National ACT!2015 Alliance. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2015. 2 p.
- 34. ACT!2030 Bulgaria. Roadmap Bulgaria. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2017. 1 p.
- 35. ACT!2015 Bulgaria. Roadmap Bulgaria. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2015 p. 4
- 36. ACT!2015. Annex to Interim Report Swiss Grant Dec 2015 June 2016. p. 5
- 37. UNAIDS. ACT!2015 Project Report 1st January 2016 31st December 2016. 2017. p. 17
- 38. ACT!2015 Bulgaria. ACT!2015 Meeting with Missions: 2014. p. 15
- 39. ACT!2015 Bulgaria. ACT!2015 UN Mission Briefing. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2014. 3 p.
- 40. ACT!2015 Bulgaria. Sex Survey. Questionnaire (from classes 6 to 8). Sofia (Bulgaria):2017. p. 8
- 41. ACT!2015 Bulgaria. Sex Survey. Questionnaire (from classes 8 to 12). Sofia (Bulgaria):2017. p. 8
- 42. ACT!2015 Bulgaria. Sex Survey. Questionnaire (for teachers). Sofia (Bulgaria):2017. p. 8
- 43. ACT!2015 Bulgaria. Country Monitoring Tool for Post-2015. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2015. p. 160
- 44. ACT!2015 Bulgaria. National Strategy Meeting Presentation. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2015. 8 p.
- 45. ACT!2015 Bulgaria. Booklet. Sofia (Bulgaria): 2015. 2 p.

### **Bibliography - India**

- 1. ACT!2015. ACT!2015 Brief India: Dove India. 5p.
- 2. ACT!2030 India Project Report: Dove India: 4p.
- 3. ACT!2015 India. Project Update Report April October 2015. Dove India. 5p.
- 4. ACT!2015. Project Update Report December 2015 July 2016 (Dove India). 2016. 5p.
- 5. ACT!2030 India. ACT!2030 Project Update Report August 2017.2017. 4p.
- 6. ACT!2030 India. ACT!2030 Project Report April 2017. 2017. 6p.
- 7. Srikant. Securing SRHR in post-2015 Development Agenda through Engagement of Parliamentarians in India. 2p.

- 8. ACT!2030. Final Financial Report. 22 February 2018. 1p.
- 9. ACT!2015, The PACT. ACT!2015 Interim Financial Report. Varanasi (India). 02 August 2016. 1p.
- 10. Dove Foundation. Name of Alliance: ACT!2030 India Dove Foundation. 2p.
- 11. ACT!2030. ACT!2030 Final Project Report (India). January 2018. 10p.
- 12. ACT!2030 India. Questionnaire for the Incharge of Health Centre. 9p.

# Bibliography – Jamaica

- 1. ACT!2015 Jamaica. Technical Report January to March. Kingston (Jamaica): 2015. 10p.
- 2. ACT!2015. Partner Budget (Summary Budget). 2017. 1p.
- 3. ACT2015. PFA detailed Dudget. 2015. 1p.
- 4. ACT!2015. Terms of Reference for Partner Organisation November 2015 December 2017. 2015. 6p
- 5. ACT!2015. The Programme Funding Agreement for the ACT!2015 Phase 4 Coordination. 2015. 13p.
- 6. ACT!2030 Jamaica. ACT!2030 Activity Update Report 2015. Kingston (Jamaica): 2015. 7p.
- 7. ACT!2030 Jamaica. Annex to the Interim Report 2016. Kingston (Jamaica): 2016. 5p.
- 8. ACT!2030 Jamaica. Copy of Reporting Summary. Kingston (Jamaica): 2017. 1p.
- 9. ACT!2030 Jamaica. Jamaica ACT!2015 Roadmap. Kingston (Jamaica): 2017. 1p.
- 10. ACT!2030 Jamaica. ACT!2030 Project Report April 2017. Kingston (Jamaica): 2017. 8p.
- 11. ACT!2030 Jamaica. ACT!2030 Project Report August 2017. Kingston (Jamaica): 2017. 4p.
- 12. ACT!2030 Jamaica. ACT!2030 Reporting Summary 2016. Kingston (Jamaica): 2017. 8p.
- 13. ACT!2030. Youth-led, Data-driven, Accountability for the 2030 Agenda. 1p.
- 14. PACT. From Roots to Reality: A Snapshot of ACT!2015's Achievements. 2016. 17p.
- 15. UNAIDS. ACT!2015 Project Report: 1<sup>st</sup> January 2016 31<sup>st</sup> December 2016; Kingston (Jamaica): 2017. 17p.
- 16. IPPF, ACT!2015. Communications Strategy; 2p.

17. UNAIDS. Project Proposal for the Government of Switzerland (Swiss Agency for Development and Cooperation). 2015. 31p.

#### Bibliography - Kenya

- 1. ACT!2030 Kenya. Events report: Youth-led, Data-driven Accountability for the 2030 Agenda. Nairobi (Kenya): March- September 2017. 3 p.
- 2. ACT! 2015 Kenya. Phase 4 Workshop Report. Nairobi (Kenya): 2016.17 p.
- 3. ACT!2030 Kenya. Report and Action Plans: Kiambu County Community Score Card. Nairobi (Kenya): 2018.14 p.
- 4. ACT!2015 Kenya. Phase 4.2 Road Map.2016. 1 p.
- 5. ACT!2015. Project Report: UNAIDS Narrative Report. 2016. 17 p.
- 6. ACT!2015 Kenya. Activity Update Report. Kenya. December 2015-July 2016.4p
- 7. ACT!2015 Kenya. 4.2 Budget. Nairobi (Kenya): August 2017.1 p.
- 8. ACT!2015 Kenya. 4.2 Financial Reporting Budget. Nairobi (Kenya): January 2018.1 p.
- 9. ACT! 2030 Kenya. Youth Data-Reporters Workshop. Nairobi (Kenya): July 2017. 20 p.
- 10. ACT! 2030 Kenya. Youth led Research: Adolescent Youth Friendly Service Report: Nairobi (Kenya): 2018. 22 p.
- 11. ACT! 2030 Kenya. Project Report. Nairobi (Kenya): August 2017.4 p.
- 12. ACT! 2030 Kenya. Project Report. Nairobi (Kenya): April 2017.5 p.
- 13. ACT!2030 Kenya. YFS Report YAS Network Community Dialogue Forum. Nairobi (Kenya): 2017.24 p.
- 14. ACT!2015. Annex to Interim Report: Swiss Grant. 2016. 5 p.
- 15. ACT!2030 Kenya. Final Project Report. Nairobi (Kenya): 2018. 9 p.
- ACT!2030 Kenya. Policy Brief Adolescent Youth friendly Services. Nairobi (Kenya). 2018. 1 p.
- 17. ACT!2015 Kenya. Partner Organisation TOR. November 2015- December. 2017.17 p.
- 18. ACT!2015 Kenya. Brief: Kenya Organisation of African Youth. Nairobi (Kenya).2015. 2 p.
- 19. ACT!2015. Communications Strategy. May 2016. 2 p.
- 20. ACT!2030 Kenya. Key Informants Report. Nairobi (Kenya): 12 p.
- 21. ACT!2030. Youth-led, Data-driven Accountability for the 2030 Agenda. 2017. 1 p.
- 22. ACT!2015. The Programme Funding Agreement Phase 4 Coordination. 2015. 13 p.

- 23. ACT!2015. How do I get onto my Governments Delegation for the United Nations? 4 p.
- 24. ACT! 2030 Kenya. Adolescent & Youth SRHR Health Services Recommendations on SRHR Services and Information in Kenya: Online survey.10p.
- 25. ACT! 2015 Kenya. Interim Financial Report. 2016.1p
- 26. ACT!2030 Kenya. Report and Action Plans: Machakos County Community Score Card. Nairobi (Kenya): 2018.15p.
- 27. ACT! 2030 Kenya. Interim Financial Report. August 2017.1p
- 28. ACT!2015. From Roots to Reality: A Snapshot of ACT! 2015's Achievements. February 2016.22p

### **Bibliography - Mexico**

- 1. Espolea, ACT!2015. Programmatic Report 1 July 31 December 2014. Mexico; c2014. 7p. Report
- 2. Martinez T. Statement on Major Group of Childern and Youth. USA; c2015. 2p. Statement
- 3. Espolea, ACT!2015 Mexico. Activity Update Report. Mexico; c2015. 7p. Report
- 4. Espolea. ACT!2015 Brief: Mexico. Mexico; c2015. 3p. Brief
- Espolea. [Internet]. Mexico; c2015. Juventudes Mexicanas en la 5º Sesion de Negociacion del Proceso #post2015; [updated 2015 September 6, cited 2017 January 6]; [about 4p.]. Available from: http://www.espolea.org/actividades-de-vih/las-juventudes-y-sus-prioridades-en-las-negociaciones-de-la-nueva-agenda-de-desarrollo-mundial
- 6. Martinez T, UN WEB TV. Discurso sobre adolescents y jovenes en la agenda #post2015. c2015. 3p. Statement
- 7. Espolea, ACT!2015 Mexico. Declaracion de la juventud sobre la agenda 2030. Mexico; c2015. 3p. Declaration
- 8. ACT!2015. How do I get onto my government's delegation to the United Nations?; c2015. 4p
- UNFPA, Red Global de Accion Juvenil GYAN Mexico, Espolea, Coalicion de Jovenes por la Educacion y Salud Sexual, Balance Promocion para el Desarrollo y Juventud, Impetu Centro de Estudios. Analisis de proceso de la Agenda 2030 desde una perspectiva juvenil. Mexico, Agenda Nacional de Juventudes; c2015. 67p
- Espolea, ACT!2015 Mexico. Activity Update Report April October 2015. Mexico;
   c2015. 9p. Report
- 11. UNAIDS. ACT!2015 Project Report: 1<sup>st</sup> September 2015 30<sup>th</sup> June 2016. c2016. 6p. Report
- 12. Espolea. ACT!2015, Activity update report. Mexico; c2016. 9p. Report

- UNAIDS and IPPF. Annex to Interim Report Swiss Grant Dec 2015 Jun 2016.
   C2016. 5p. Report
- 14. PACT, UNAIDS. From roots to reality: A snapshot of ACT!2015's achievements. c2016. 22p. Brief
- 15. PACT, UNAIDS, ACT!2015. ACT!2015 Global Coordination Meeting. India; c2016. 15p. Brief
- 16. UNAIDS. ACT!2015 Project Report: 1st January 2016 31<sup>st</sup> December 2016. c2016. 17p. Report
- ONU México, Matinez-Hernandez T [Internet]. Mexico; c2016. Agenda 2030 en Mexico, una oportunidad de colaboración y transformación; [updated 2016 September 13, cited 2017 Enero 6]; [about 3 p.]. Available from: http://www.onu.org.mx/agenda-2030-enmexico-una-oportunidad-de-colaboracion-y-transformacion/
- 18. ACT!2030. 2017 ECOSOC Youth Forum. USA; c2017. 3p
- 19. ACT!2030 Mexico. ACT!2030 Project report: April 2017. Mexico; c2017. 8p. Report
- 20. ACT!2030 Mexico. ACT!2030 Project report: August 2017. Mexico; c2017. 6p. Report

#### Bibliography –Nigeria

- 1. ACT!2015 Phase four: Youth-led, data-driven accountability for the implementation of the Sustainable Development Goals. UNAIDS; 2015-2017 p. 3-31.
- 2. ACT!2030 Nigeria. Programmatic Report. Education as a Vaccine (Nigeria): 2014. 6p.
- 3. ACT!2030 Nigeria. Activity Update Report. Education as a Vaccine (Nigeria): Jan-March 2015. 9p.
- 4. ACT!2030 Nigeria. Activity Update Report. Education as a Vaccine (Nigeria): Apr-Oct 2015. 12p.
- 5. ACT!2030 Nigeria. Activity Update Report. Education as a Vaccine (Nigeria): Jan-March 2015. 9p.
- 6. ACT!2030 Nigeria. ANNEX TO INTERIM REPORT. SWISS GRANT: Dec-July 2016. 5p
- 7. ACT!2030 Nigeria. Activity Budget Report. Education as a Vaccine (Nigeria): Dec-Jul 2016. 1p.
- 8. ACT!2030 Nigeria. Youth Led Data Driven Accountability For The 2030 Agenda. ACT2030!:2015.1p
- 9. ACT!2015 from Roots to Reality [Internet]. 2016 p. 22. Available from: http://www.youthpact.org
- 10. UNAIDS Narrative Report. UNAIDS; 2017 p. 17.
- 11. ACT!2015, IPPF:COMMUNICATIONS STATEGDY;MAY 2016 .2p.

- 12. ACT!2030 Nigeria. How do I get on my Government delegation to the UN. (ACT2015!): 2015. 4p.
- 13. ACT!2030 Nigeria. IPPF PHASE 4 PROPOSAL. (ACT2015!): August 2015. 2p.
- 14. UNAIDS. ACT2015! PHASE4 PROJECT PROPOSAL. UNAIDS; 2015 p.31.
- 15. ACT!2030 Nigeria. Project Report. Education as a Vaccine (Nigeria): April 2017. 7p.
- 16. ACT!2030 Nigeria. Project Report. Education as a Vaccine (Nigeria): August 2017. 18p.
- 17. ACT!2015 Nigeria. ACT 2015 INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT. Education as a Vaccine (Nigeria): JAN-JUNE 2016. 2.
- 18. ACT!2030 Nigeria. SCORECARD ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE SDGS IN 11 NIGERIAN STATES. Education as a Vaccine (Nigeria):2017. 20p.
- 19. ACT!2030 Nigeria. Training Feedback. Education as a Vaccine (Nigeria): 2017. 4p.
- 20. ACT!2030 Nigeria. NIGERIAN SDGS DATA REPORTERS INITIATIVE CONCEPT NOTE. Education as a Vaccine (Nigeria): August 2017. 13p.
- 21. ACT!2030 Nigeria. ACT!2015 Partner Organization. Education as a Vaccine (Nigeria): November 2015-December 2017. 6p

# **Bibliography - Philippines**

- 1. ACT!2030 Philippines. Financial Report August 2017. Quezon City (Philippines): 18 August 2017. 3 p.
- 2. The PACT. ACT!2015 Interim Financial Report. Quezon City (Philippines): 14 July 2016. 1 p.
- 3. ACT!2015. Financial Report. Quezon City (Philippines): Action for Health Initiatives (ACHIEVE) Inc.; July 2016. 2 p.
- 4. ACT!2015. ACT!2015 Technical Report. 2015 Jan-Mar. 10 p.
- 5. ACT!2015. ACT!2015 Activity Budget. Quezon City (Philippines): Action for Health Initiatives (ACHIEVE) Inc.; 1 p.
- 6. ACT!2030 Philippines. ACT!2030 Project Report. Quezon City (Philippines): Action for Health Initiatives (ACHIEVE) Inc.; 23 April 2017.9 p.
- 7. ACT!2030 Philippines. ACT!2030 Project Report. Quezon City (Philippines): Action for Health Initiatives (ACHIEVE) Inc.; 25 August 2017.3 p.
- 8. ACT!2015 Philippines. ACT!2015 Activity Update Report. Quezon City (Philippines): Action for Health Initiatives (ACHIEVE) Inc.; 15 July 2016. 5 p.
- 9. Family Planning Organisation of the Philippines Inc (FPOP). ACT!2015 Consultation for Advocacy Roadmap Documentation Report. 23 24 August 2014. 36 p.

- 10. Chia I, Abril DA. Making It Count National Training Documentation Report. Ciudad Christhia (Philippines): Action for Health Initiatives (ACHIEVE) Inc.; July 2017. 115 p.
- 11. ACHIEVE. National Stakeholders' Forum No Young Person Left Behind in the Post 2015 Development Agenda. Sta. Cruz Manila (Philippines): Action for Health Initiatives (ACHIEVE) Inc.; 28 October 2015. 24 p.
- 12. ACHIEVE. Activity Update Report April November 2015. Quezon City (Philippines) :17 November 2015. 9 p.
- 13. National Economic and Development Authority (NEDA). Development of the National SDG Indicators. 2p.
- 14. Annex to Interim Report Swiss Grant DEC 2015 JUN 2016. 5 p.
- 15. ACT!2015. Project Report: 1st January 2016 31st December 2016. UNAIDS. 9 p.
- 16. ACT!2030 Implementation Plan: 2017. 1 p. (Unpublished report).
- 17. Reporting Summary. 2016 Jul. (Unpublished report).
- 18. FROM ROOTS TO REALITY: A Snapshot of ACT!2015's Achievements. The PACT and United Nations Programme on HIV/AIDS (UNAIDS); 2016 Feb. 22 p.
- 19. ACT!2015. ACT!2015 Partner Organisation November 2015-December 2017 (Annex 1: Terms of Reference). 6 p.
- 20. ACT!2030. Youth-led, Data-driven Accountability for the 2030 Agenda. 1p. (Unpublished)
- 21. ACT!2015, IPPF. Communication Strategy. May 2016. 2 p.
- 22. UNAIDS. Project Proposal for the Government of Switzerland (Swiss Agency for Development and Cooperation). 31 p
- 23. Act!2015! How do I get on my Government's Delegation to the United Nations? 4p.
- 24. IPPF. The Programme Funding Agreement for the ACT!2015 Phase 4 Coordination. 13p.
- 25. Caparida JA, Lopez A. Position Paper on Comprehensive anti-Discrimination Bill. 1 p.
- 26. Lacbayo AP, Santuile D, Demasuay KJ, Geneta KC. Philippine Comprehensive Sexuality Education Program Evaluation through Experiences of Students, Teachers, and Officials of the Department of Education. Quezon City (Philippines): Action for Health Initiatives (ACHIEVE), Inc.; 2018. 73 p.
- 27. ACT!2030. ACT!2030 Youth- led, Data-driven Accountability for the 2030 Agenda. 1 p.
- 28. ACT!2030 Philippines. ACT!2030 Brief: Philippines. Quezon City (Philippines): 1p.
- 29. ACT!2015 Philippines. ACT!2015 Brief: Philippines. Quezon City (Philippines): 1p.
- 30. ACT!2015 Philippines. ACT!2015 Brief: Philippines. Quezon City (Philippines): 2p.
- 31. ACT!2030 Philippines. Brochure. 2 p.

# **Bibliography – South Africa**

- 1. ACT!2015. How do I get onto my Government's Delegation to the United Nations? Geneva (Switzerland): 2016. 2p.
- 2. ACT!2015. Partner Organisation: November 2015- December 2017. Geneva (Switzerland): 2015. 6p.
- 3. ACT!2015 South Africa. Activity Update Report. December 2015 July 2016. Durban (South Africa): 2016. 3p.
- 4. ACT!2015 South Africa. Activity Budget. Durban (South Africa): 2015. 1p.
- 5. ACT!2015 South Africa. 2015 Brief Hope2Educate. Durban (South Africa): 2015. 2p.
- 6. ACT!2015 South Africa. Interim Financial Report. January 2016- June 2016. Durban (South Africa): August 2016. 1p.
- 7. ACT!2015. Summary Budget Phase 4 November 2015- December 2017. Geneva (Switzerland): 2015. 1p.
- 8. ACT!2015. Technical Report January- March 2015. Geneva (Switzerland): 2015. 10p.
- 9. ACT!2030 Youth-led, Data-driven Accountability for the 2030 Agenda. Geneva (Switzerland): 2017. 1p.
- 10. IPPF. The Programme funding Agreement for the ACT!2015 Phase 4 Coordination. Geneva (Switzerland): 2015. 13p.
- 11. IPPF, UNAIDS. Annex to Interim Report- Swiss Grant December 2015- June 2016. Geneva (Switzerland): 2016. 5p.
- 12. Reporting Summary. Geneva (Switzerland). 1p.
- 13. Swiss TPH, UNAIDS. End Review of ACT!2030 Phases 1-4: Youth-led, Data-driven Accountability for the Sustainable Development Goals. Inception Report. Geneva (Switzerland): February 2018. 36p.
- 14. The PACT. From Roots To Reality: A Snapshot of ACT!2015's Achievements. Geneva (Switzerland): February 2016. 22p.
- 15. The PACT. ACT!2015: Aims and Objectives. Geneva (Switzerland): 2017. 1p.
- 16. UNAIDS. ACT!2015 Project Report: 1st January 2016 31st December 2016. Geneva (Switzerland): 2016. 17p.
- 17. UNAIDS. Project proposal for the Government of Switzerland (Swiss Agency for Development and Cooperation). Geneva: 2015. 31p.

#### **Bibliography - Uganda**

1. ACT! 2015 Uganda. Activity Update Report December 2015 - July 2016. 7p.

- 2. ACT! 2030 Uganda. ACT!2030 Project Report April 2017. 6p.
- 3. ACT! 2030 Uganda. ACT!2030 Project August 2017. 8p.
- 4. ACT Report. 3p.
- 5. ACT! 2030 Training Report September 2017. 13p.
- 6. ACT! 2015. Technical Report January- March 2015. 10p.
- 7. ACT! 2015 Activity Budget. 1p.
- 8. ACT! 2015 Tracking Progress towards 2030 Uganda Training Report. 13p.
- 9. Activity work plan for ACT! 2030 for the year 2018. 3p.
- 10. ACT! 2015 Global Coordination Meeting. 15p.
- 11. ACT! 2015 Phase 4 Uganda Chapter. 2p.
- 12. ACT! 2015 Interim Financial Report. 4p.
- 13. Copy of Reporting Summary 1p.
- 14. ACT!2015, PACT. CYSRA Uganda ACT!2015 Interim Financial Report. 14 July 2016. 2 p.
- 15. CSYRA Uganda budget November 2016-December 2017. 2p.
- 16. CSYRA Uganda ACT! 2015 Budget 1st Sept-31st Oct 2016. 1p.
- 17. Final Uganda ACT! 2015 country alliance road map. 1p.
- 18. High level Event to showcase the Role of youth in implementing and monitoring of Sustainable Development Goals in Uganda. 4p.
- 19. Making the global Fund Money work for the young People Report of the youth Dialogue, 5p.
- 20. Minutes from Meeting held at CSYRA-Uganda Offices on 2<sup>nd</sup> August 2017. 4p.
- 21. Report on strategizing for ACT! 2015 Alliance Meeting held at silver springs Hotel on 14<sup>th</sup>-15<sup>th</sup> of October 2016. 8p.
- 22. Report on school based training in SRHR policies for ACT! 2030 adolescents in school held at Busia Border Primary school on 12<sup>th</sup> April 2017. 6p.
- 23. Uganda ACT!2015 Country Alliance Road map.1p.

#### Bibliography – Zambia

1. ACT!2030 Zambia. Advocacy Road Map. Lusaka (Zambia): 2016-2017. 2p (Excel spreadsheet)

- 2. ACT!2030 Zambia. Timeline. Lusaka (Zambia): 2017. 1p (Excel spreadsheet)
- 3. ACT!2030 Zambia. Budget. Lusaka (Zambia): 2016-2017. 2p (Excel spreadsheet)
- 4. ACT!2030 Zambia. Workshop Zambia: Capacity Building Training for Alliance Members. Lusaka (Zambia). 17p
- 5. ACT!2030 Zambia. Youth Data Reporters Draft Report: Access to Information and Services on SRHR. All provinces (Zambia): January 2018. 50p
- 6. ACT!2015 Zambia. Interim Financial Report. 1p
- 7. ACT!2015, The Pact, UNAIDS. From Roots to Reality: A Snapshot of ACT!2025's Achievements. February 2016. 22p
- 8. ACT!2015, The Pact, UNAIDS. Terms of Reference for Partner Organisation. 6p
- 9. ACT!2030, The Pact, UNAIDS. Youth-Led, Data-Driven Accountability for the 2030 Agenda. 1p
- 10. ACT!2015, IPPF. Communications Strategy. 2p
- 11. ACT!2015. How do I get my Government's Delegation to the United Nations. 4p
- 12. ACT!2015, IPPF. The Programme Funding Agreement for the ACT!2015 Phase 4 Coordination. 14p
- 13. ACT!2015. Partner Budget Phase 4: November 2015- December 2017. 3p (Excel spreadsheet)
- 14. ACT!2015, UNAIDS: Phase 4 Proposal. 31p
- 15. ACT!2015 Zambia. Interim Progress Report. December 2015- July 2016. 6p
- 16. ACT!2015. Reporting Summary. 2p (Excel spreadsheet)
- 17. ACT!2030 Zambia. Progress Report. April 2017. 6p
- 18. ACT!2030 Zambia. Implementation Plan: National Alliance. 1p
- 19. ACT!2030 Zambia. Youth Data Reporters Training Report. August 2017. 36p
- 20. ACT!2030 Zambia. Narrative Report. August 2017. 4p
- 21. ACT!2015, UNAIDS. Narrative Project Report: January 2016 December 2016. 17p
- 22. ACT!2015. Annex To Interim Report Swiss Grant Dec 2015 Jun 2016. 5p
- 23. ACT!2015. Activity Report. January-March 2015. 10p
- 24. ACT!2015. Zambia. Update Report: April-October 2015. 9p
- 25. ACT!2015. Zambia Phase 4 Budget: January-June 2016. 1p.
- 26. ACT!2015. Zambia Workshop Zambia: Participant Agenda. Lusaka (Zambia): 8-11 December 2015. 5p

#### 27. ACT!2015. Zambia Advocacy Brief Report. 3p

## Bibliography - Zimbabwe

- 1. ACT!2030. ECOSOC YOUTH FORUM FINAL REPORT, January 2017. 3 pages (np)
- 2. ACT!2015: Key to successful youth- led advocacy (np)
- 3. ACT!2015. ACT!2015 Terms Of Reference; 2014. 4 pages
- 4. International Planned Parenthood Foundation. Communication Strategy IPPF ACT!2015; May 2016. 2 pages (np)
- 5. Government of Zimbabwe (Ministry of Health and Child Care). Zimbabwe National HIV/AIDS Strategic Plan 2015-2020. Harare: Government of Zimbabwe; 2015. 76 pages
- 6. Ignatious Chiveso. Youth a missed opportunity in development. Harare: Blog post; (np). 3 pages
- 7. International Planned Parenthood Foundation. ACT!2030- Phase 4 Proposal. (n.p); (n.p). 13 pages
- 8. Joint United Nations Programme on HIV and AIDS. ACT!2015 Brochure. (n.p); 12 November 2013. 4 pages
- 9. Joint United Nations Programme on HIV and AIDS. ACT!2030- Phase 4 Proposal. (n.p; (n.p). 31 pages
- Ministry of Health and Child Care. National Guidelines on Clinical adolescent and youth friendly sexual and reproductive health provision. Harare: Government of Zimbabwe; 2016. 88 pages
- 11. Ministry of Health and Child Care, Zimbabwe National Family Planning Council, United Nations Population Fund. Facing the Challenge of Adolescent Pregnancy in Zimbabwe. Harare: Government of Zimbabwe; 2016. 16 pages
- 12. PACT/UNAIDS. FROM ROOTS TO REALITY: A Snapshot of ACT!2015's Achievements. February 2016. 22 pages (np)
- 13. United Nations Development Programme. UNDP Innovation Fund- Zimbabwe Report. Harare; 2014. 6 pages
- 14. Youth Engage. Sustainable Development Goals: Towards effective engagement with and participation by youth (Review, analyze and identify Voluntary National Reviews (VNRs) youth engagement best practices, approaches to inform Zimbabwe SDGs implementation and engagement of young people). Harare; July 2017. 29 pages
- 15. Youth Engage/The PACT: External Communications Report, 2017. 9 pages
- 16. Youth Engage.ACT!2015 Final Report. Harare; December 2017. 9 pages
- 17. Youth Engage. ACT!2015 Project Report. Harare; April 2017. 5 pages
- 18. Youth Engage. ACT!2015 Project Report. Harare; August 2017. 4 pages

- 19. Youth Engage. ACT!2015 Zimbabwe Interim Report. Harare; July 2016. 8 pages
- 20. Youth Engage. Literature Review on Sexual and Reproductive Health Rights in Zimbabwe. Harare; February 2015. 10 pages
- 21. Youth Engage, Young People's Network on Sexual Reproductive Health HIV and AIDS. Global Fund Writing Process: Priorities for Young People (PowerPoint Presentation); December 2016. 7 slides
- 22. Youth Engage. ACT!2030 Final Financial Report (September to December 2017). Harare; 2017. 6 pages
- 23. Youth Engage. ACT!2015 Brief: Zimbabwe. Harare. 2 pages (np)
- 24. Youth Engage. Youth Data Reporters training report. Harare; 2017. 7 pages

# **Annex 4: Output table**

Below you can find a list of outputs for each country, focusing on specific deliverables and their effect.

	Training for Youth Leaders/Organisati ons	Support for Young People to Attend Workshops/Confere nces Meetings	Awareness-raiinsg for Young People's SRHR	Development of Evidence Based Guidelines	Development of Advocacy and Communication Tools
Algeria	Making it count training (50 members and 12 NGOS); National workshop on Tracking progress towards 2030	Colloborations of young members in national strategic dialogues	National campaigning; participation in global campaigns	Survey questionnaire with 38 indictators dissaggregated by age, region and key pops.	IEC materials on data collections results; spot video on priorities of key pops
Bulgaria	Data collection and advocacy training (43 members); Conducted a workshop on Tracking progress towards 2030 (22 members age 16-19); National ACT 2015 Strategy Workshop (20 youth advocates participated)	Regional Advocacy Strategy Workshop: Building Alliances in EECA for HIV and SRHR in post-2015; ACT Reps in 19th World Festival of Youth and Students in Sochi, Russia (2017)	1st and 2nd Kluyche Forums bring together youth and multi-sectoral stakeholderers to discuss key youth issues (e.g. education, CSE, youth employement); Declaration to decision-makers presented by young people; Photo messaging campaign;		25 Educational and informational videos on CSE; Document based on review of national policies related to SDGs sent to key stakeholders for future advocacy inititiaves; Media Presence (e.g. Reports, interviews); On-line discussion platform (Our Voice)

India	Making it Count (65 youth reporters trained); National Strategy Workshop (20 youth advocates)	ACT Rep. in India Delegation to UNGA with PM in NY (2015); ACT Reps in 19th World Festival of Youth and Students in Sochi, Russia (2017); ACT India co-hosted workshop on data driven advocacy at the APCSRHR, Vietnam(2017)	ACT invited to be on panel convened by Ministry of Youth towards revising Youth Policy; Individual meetings with Parlimentarians and Ministers about prioritizing ASRHR in Agenda 2030rep participated on India National Radio Show on Youth Affairs; Collaborated in the "Have you seen my Rights" campaign	Survey Questionnaire to assess AYSRHR in India	Exchanged evidence with other CSOS on evidence based communication tools;
Jamaica	Young people trained as data reporters;	ACT rep attended ECOSOC High Level Forum in NY; Rep attended ILGA World Conference in Thailand (gave 8 minutes presentation); Attended 4th Caribbean Youth Leaders Summit;	Partners with MoH and Jamaica Seropositives network to host Health for All Forum (over 300 students participated)		JYAN developed an Advocacy Toolkit that was shared across all ACT platforms

Kenya	Youth were trained as data reporters (50 youth reporters); Youth organisations were trained on evidence-based advocacy and data analysis (486 A&Y 34 health providers; 77 community volunteers);	ACT members participated in the Validation Meeting for the Assessment of AFHS delivers held by the MoH; Children's Investment Fund Country Response Workshop to define gaps in reducing unsafe abortions among girls in Kenya; National Dialogue on Voluntary National Review by Ministry of Development Planning on SDGs;	Community Scorecard meetings were held to raise awareness of YFS; Partnerships created with MoH and Ministry of Planning on A&Y issues around the SDGs particularly YFS.	Developed a Roadmap to Guide ACT!2030 Kenya to influence indicators;	Development of an evidence based Policy Brief, 40 Infographics and a Documentary on the research data collected by ACT; Research report used for advocacy; 6000 fans with Messages on YFS and HIV; 20 Blogs by data reporters
Mexico	Making it Count Training about data use and advocacy (55 Members) (2017); Tracking Progress 2030, youth-led accountability and data training (30 youth advocates from 20 youth-led organizations) (2016); Realization of the National Strategic Meeting to train and	Individual members of ACT! participated on negotiation tables and presented ACT!2030 initiative in the National Human Rights Commission events; Participation in ECLAC meetings focused on the definition of national and regional indicators (2017); Participation in Second ECOSOC;	Forum "HIV, a priority for the Post- 2015 development agenda" with Mexico City's Human Rights Commission where Mexico ACT! 2015 was officially presented (2014)		Act (2015) created Facebook and twitter accounts on the Post-2015 agenda process and AYSRHR; Developed of contents for infographics for a dissemination campaign on key Agenda 2030 youth issues; (2015); secured a space/spot for youth organizations in the

	updated on SRHR and HIV in Mexico (2014)	in the Forum on Financing for Development; and in the Preparatory Meeting for the High- Level Political Forum (2017)		national CSO articulated platform to follow up the 2030 (2015); In partnership with others and UNFPA created the National Youth Agenda (2015)
Nigeria	Making it Count training; National Stakeholders Capacity Building Workshop on "enhancing implementation and Follow-up of Agenda 2030 and voluntary national review on the SDGs;	National Stakeholder Consultation on NVR (2017); NVR report presented at the High Level Political Forum in NY (2017)	Social Media Strategy targeting President and VP; 22'000 twitter accounts reached with ACT SRHR messages - led to Nigeria president not making any reservations in high level forums (and instead pledging support for HIV prevention and treatment)	Developed and gather information via Scorecard for advocacy purposes - served as an alternative to the Nigeria report at the High Level Political Forum (HLPF) in NY

Philippines	Making it Count National Training (50 data reporters); Conducted a workshop on Tracking Progress towards 2030 (20 youth members from 13 orgs) - results shared in advocacy conference with formal messages delivered to government reps.	ACT ensured the participation of YKPs in the development of the 6th AIDS Medium Term Plan (included Proxy Consent to allow testing of adolescents under 18 years of age); Created a youth subcommittee under the National AIDS Council; Integrated HIV program into the National Youth Dev. Plan; Participated in a UNAIDS workshop on data driven advocacy at the APCSRHR, Vietnam(2017)	National Stakeholders Forum: No Young person left behind in thee Post 2015 Agenda where government reps committed to support youth related agenda including CSE and YFS	Philippines Technical CSE programme report	
South Africa	Provided training on qualitative data collection and analysis to improve advocacy skills - resulted in advocacy on SRHR in national Strategic Plan for HIV, TB and STIs and elsewhere.	Support for young people to participate in political spaces around the Maputo Plan of Action; SDG development meetings; Steering Committee for the ASRHRFS 2015-2019; the Official Delegation to the UNGA; 19th World Festival of Youth and	"She Conquers" campaign	Focused on use of international CSE guidelines in SA	Shared experiences and communicated with other ACT Alliances to gather tools

		Students in Sochi, Russia (2017)			
Uganda	Provided training for youth Alliance members to collect data for advocacy	Act reps participated in Women Deliver; Women Now, and other UN Meetings in New York; Also several national workshops and meetings		Contributed to a report on Uganda's preparedness to embrace the SDGs; contribution to the dissemination of policies and guidelines	Advocacy brief; Advocacy Strategy, IEC materials
Zambia	Young people trained as data reporters;	ACT reps lobbied and secured a space to share their researcher result at the East and Southern Africa Conference on SDGs; Attended one global event engaging young people	Shared results of data collections in an National Dialogue on strengthened linkages among ministries with policies speaking to SRH and HIV information and services for young people		

Training on Post 2015 advocacy (25 members); Training on Data Collection and use (40 young people); Training on the use of innovative communication technologies to gather evidence, package and disseminate among young people in relation to SRHR (10 young people from 10 provinces)	Participated in numerous national and international advocacy and policy dialogues including the Global Fund CCM; the Zimbabwe Youth Council and Youth Forum convened by the MoY; and at international level, the HLPF in NY; HL meeting in Geneva convened by WHO; ECOSOC platform; the UNICEF conference/Finland on iCount; the AIDS Conference 2016; the Africa SDG Summit (2017); and ICASA	Young People's Network (part of Afriyan), the Right Here Right Now campaign; the "Have You Seen My Rights" platform; ACT created partnerships between youth organisations, key government ministries and technical partners to advance and raise awareness of young people's SRHR.	ACT participated in the development and review of National Guidelines that are overseen by the MoHCC; ACT contributed to numerous government documents to include AYSRHR issues (e.g. the ASRH National Strategy; the Life Skills Sexuality HIV and AIDS Strategy; the Voluntary National Review of SDGs (VNR) 2017; the School Health Policy; and the Public Health Bill)	In collaboration with YPN, ACT participated in national consultations with young people to gather information and evidence to include in the Global Fund writing process.
---	--	--	--	---

#### **Annex 5: ACT!2030 Evaluation Questions**

Evaluation question 1: Evidence for young people's sexual and reproductive health and rights

EQ 1. To what extent has ACT!2030 contributed to building an evidence base related to young people's sexual and reproductive health and rights?

#### Rationale for inclusion

The ACT!2030 approach strongly emphasises building an evidence base for monitoring, accountability and advocacy for young people' SRHR. In practice, ACT!2030 focuses on filling evidence gaps in order to strengthen monitoring and advocacy for increased accountability in national, regional or global processes related to the Sustainable Development Goals. Phase four specifically aimed to help build an evidence base for civil society organisations and in particular, youth-led organisations to contribute to monitoring and the implementation of the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), as well as other development frameworks in the countries or regions where they work. This work, in turn, may contribute to the global dialogue about evidence-based accountability for the Sustainable Development Goals.

#### **Assumptions**

There is an urgent need globally for more information on the needs, expectations, and behaviours of young people, and the importance and effectiveness of engaging young people and youth-led organisations to meet these needs. However, training and capacity building of young people in relation to reporting, monitoring, and data collection and analysis will not automatically translate into improved use of evidence to inform and implement policies and programs in favour of young people's SRHR. This also depends on the adoption of youth indicators in national and global reporting mechanisms, establishment of reliable and sustainable national evidence databases, and the ability and will of youth to use evidence to influence decision-makers. Attention is also required to ensure that sex- and age-disaggregated data are available on youth, as well as on the needs of the most marginalised and vulnerable young people.

#### Indicators

- Evidence that youth-friendly SRHR and HIV indicators, including on youth-friendly health services (YFHS) and comprehensive sexuality education (CSE), were adopted into national and global reporting mechanisms, including for implementation and monitoring of the SDGs
- Evidence that national and global databases or reporting mechanisms on youth SRHR were created or strengthened

 Availability of age- and sex-disaggregated data and evidence relating to the needs of marginalised and vulnerable groups of young people, including girls and young women, and young key populations (YKPs) at risk of or affected by HIV.

#### Proposed evaluation questions

- 1.a To what extent were the skills and knowledge of national youth alliances and youth organisations increased in relation to national reporting and monitoring, data collection and analysis, and evidence-based advocacy for young people's SRHR? How?
- 1.b Did ACT!2030 contribute to the development of **evidence-based guidelines and resources** on young people's SRHR, including advocacy and communication tools?
- 1.c To what extent did ACT!2030 contribute to **national and global evidence databases and reporting mechanisms** for SRHR and HIV? How?
- 1.d Is there evidence that ACT!2030 contributed to the consideration of, and/or adoption of youth-related indicators (such as for YFHS, CSE or youth and HIV indicators) in national and global databases and/or monitoring and reporting mechanisms related to the Sustainable Development Goals?
- 1.e Did ACT!2030 contribute to advocacy for the collection and/or use of **age- and sex-disaggregated data** on young people's SRHR (including the SRHR of marginalised and vulnerable young people) and if so, how?

# Evaluation question 2: Meaningful youth engagement and participation for accountability

EQ 2. To what extent has ACT!2030 contributed to increasing young people's leadership, meaningful participation and engagement for accountability on their sexual and reproductive health and rights?

#### Rationale for inclusion

Meaningful youth engagement is the central pillar of ACT!2030: a youth-led social action initiative conceived by The PACT to inspire young people to advocate for the advancement of their sexual and reproductive health and rights in the post-2015 development agenda. Young people are important actors for and beneficiaries of the Sustainable Development Goal agenda, and as such they have a right to play a significant role in the monitoring and implementation of the development agenda. Achieving the sexual and reproductive health and rights of adolescents and young people is also a key priority for ACT!2030's supporters, including IPPF, UNAIDS and UNFPA, all of which support and prioritise youth participation and engagement.

#### **Assumptions**

Meaningful youth participation and engagement requires more than attendance at meetings and conferences; it also requires structural and procedural changes to adapt to the needs and realities of young people, effective youth-adult partnerships, and ongoing training and capacity-building of both young people and adults. It requires the social and political space for young people to participate within civil society and government processes to advocate for their interests. Tokenism (inviting young people to a process without them being able to substantially influence it) and exclusivity (repeated inclusion or exclusion of the same groups) frequently weaken efforts to support youth participation.<sup>1</sup>

#### Meaningful youth engagement

Women Deliver offers the following definition of meaningful youth engagement:

"Meaningful youth engagement is a participatory process in which young people's ideas, expertise, experiences and perspectives are integrated through programmatic, policy, and institutional decision-making structures so as to best inform outcomes. This process requires young people to be involved in all levels and stages of program, policy, campaign, and initiative development, including all stages of design, implementation and evaluation; this is especially true of those programs that directly affect their lives. This participation and engagement must be supported by access to accurate and youth-friendly information, meaningful decision-making mechanisms, and fully integrated accountability mechanisms from stakeholders. This also includes the integration of diverse perspectives and populations in decision-making, especially those who are most marginalised."

Source: Engage Youth: A discussion paper on meaningful youth engagement. Women Deliver.

Figure 1: Meaningful youth engagement

The overall goal of Phase 4 of ACT!2030 is to contribute to the establishment of national youth-led, data-driven accountability mechanisms related to youth SRHR. Examples of potential youth accountability mechanisms may include:

- Systematic or institutionalised opportunities for young people and youth organisations to provide input on programs, policies, legislation or development frameworks that affect them;
- Official roles for youth within local and national governments:
- Clear roles and spaces for youth voices (and representation) in the broader civil society organisation efforts to influence and monitor the SDGs.
- Co-management structures (ensuring young people have permanent positions on decision-making platforms);
- Inclusion of young people in government delegations;
- Ensuring transparency and open access to data and information for young people to use in advocacy efforts.

<sup>1</sup> Youth Coalition. Meaningful Youth Participation: what it actually means for you, your work and your organization, 2009.

#### **Defining accountability**

According to a report on youth engagement for accountability for the post-2015 agenda jointly authored by Plan International, the Overseas Development Institute and the UN Secretary-General's Envoy on Youth in 2014, "Accountability can take many forms, from the local to the international level and from informal, citizen-led initiatives to formal structures and processes. As a result, there are wide-ranging interpretations and definitions of accountability... We apply the definition of duty bears, primarily governments, taking responsibility for their commitments and actions, answering for them by explaining and justifying them to rights holders, and being subject to a form of sanction where commitments and responsibilities are not fulfilled."

Source: Young People's Engagement in Strengthening Accountability for the Post-2015 Agenda, Plan International, ODI, UN Secretary-General's Envoy on Youth, 2014.

Figure 2: Defining accountability

#### **Assumptions**

The goal of ACT!2030 is ambitious. Meaningful participation of youth depends on the extent to which youth rights and interests are respected in society, particularly by adults, so that their voice can be heard and they can secure a space "at the table" for meaningful engagement in processes that affect them. How national youth alliances, defined meaningful participation and engagement and the actions taken to support or increase accountability, and what types of accountability mechanisms resulted (if any), will be central to understanding the achievements and challenges of ACT!2030.

#### **Indicators**

- Evidence that ACT!2030 facilitated meaningful youth participation within national or global processes and platforms related to national reporting and monitoring, data collection and analysis, and evidence-based advocacy was conducted
- Evidence of youth-led attendance or hosting of national SRHR meetings, workshops and events
- Evidence of advocacy for, and/or adoption of national or sub-national, youth-led accountability mechanisms or processes as a result of ACT!2030
- Evidence for increased visibility and recognition of youth-led accountability for implementation of national, regional and global agreements and frameworks (e.g. evidence that youth supported by ACT!2030 were able to influence advances in the implementation and monitoring of the national and international development agenda; evidence that young people contributed to new development concepts or frameworks; evidence that youth-defined goals and priorities were reflected in policies, strategies, and consensus documents)
- Representation of marginalised and vulnerable groups among ACT!2030 participants, including adolescent girls, young key populations, and young people affected by HIV

#### Proposed evaluation questions

- 2.a How and to what extent did ACT!2030 facilitate and/or support youth-led participation within national and global platforms and processes through advocacy, lobbying and awareness-raising activities for young people's SRHR? (Consider training, capacity building, attendance at workshops, conferences and meetings.)
- 2.b Were **marginalised and vulnerable groups** of young people, including young key populations at risk of or affected by HIV, meaningfully included in ACT!2030 efforts?
- 2.c Were national youth-led accountability mechanisms or processes adopted for monitoring and implementation of national, regional and global agreements and frameworks, such as the SDGs? To what extent can this be attributed to ACT!2030 specific efforts or activities?
- 2.d Did existing national and global youth-led accountability mechanisms achieve greater **visibility and recognition** because of the efforts or activities of ACT!2030?

#### Evaluation question 3: National, regional and global coordination and exchange

EQ 3. To what extent did ACT!2030 contribute to communication and coordination across countries and regions for youth-led accountability in relation to young people's SRHR?

#### Rationale for inclusion

The Sustainable Development Goals and other regional and global development frameworks rely on international coordination and cooperation for success. Effective youth engagement for the full realisation of young people's sexual and reproductive health and rights also depends on sharing of learning between youth organisations, including via the establishment of partnerships, coalitions and coordination mechanisms. ACT!2030 seeks to address this by establishing national communication and coordination strategies to allow for youth-led global exchange, advocacy and engagement with decision-makers.

#### **Assumptions**

Increasing the participation and voice of youth and youth organisations in national and international processes that affect them challenges social, political and even cultural norms in some contexts, especially where young people are usually represented by adults. For youth-led organisations to have a greater voice in the post-2015 development agenda, requires coalition building, networking, and cooperation to harness the political space that is only now starting to be made available to them to participate in the dialogue. It is also assumed that greater coordination is inclusive, and leads to strengthened exchange and partnership (and not the inverse due to competition or other adversarial outcomes due to limited funding etc.)

#### Indicators

- Development, sharing and exchange of evidence-based communication and advocacy tools
- Evidence of representative youth attendance at regional and global coordination meetings or workshops for youth SRHR, HIV and development, especially relating to international development frameworks such as the SDGs
- Evidence of creation of youth-led national, regional and global partnerships or coordination mechanisms

#### Proposed evaluation questions

- 3.a Did ACT!2030 contribute to development, sharing and exchange of evidence-based communication and advocacy tools? If so, to what extent? Were such tools shared across countries and regions?
- 3.b To what extent did ACT!2030 strengthen youth-led global, regional and national partnerships and networks through coordination and cooperation in support of young people's SRHR? How? (Consider the creation of national, regional or global partnerships and coordination mechanisms.)

# **Evaluation question 4: Efficiency and sustainability**

EQ 4. Were sufficient resources available and efficiently utilised to achieve sustainable results?

#### Rationale for inclusion

The long-term effectiveness of any development effort is aided by clear strategic thinking and the efficient use of resources to achieve expected results in a sustainable manner. Youth-led advocacy efforts for sexual and reproductive health and rights face particular challenges in this regard. The natural "aging out" process means that continual training and capacity building of young people are required as adolescents and youth mature into adults. Furthermore, efforts to empower young people and to better address the sexual and reproductive health needs of adolescents and youth face intrinsic challenges in many contexts: gender, cultural and social barriers to the full realisation of young people's rights are all common. Finally, youth-led organisations, by their nature, are new to the field of development and need to build their organisational skills and capacities to be effective players on their own behalf.

#### Indicators

- Evidence that sufficient resources were available and efficiently utilised to meet planned objectives (consider evidence that adequate human and financial resources were available; that resources were received on time; evidence of problems

- associated with utilisation e.g. delayed or incomplete implementation; administration constraints)
- Evidence that each phase of the ACT!2030 approach built on the achievements of preceding efforts and used lessons learned to refine implementation
- Evidence that ACT!2030 activities have contributed to sustainable mechanisms for youth-led accountability and long-term national commitments to youth SRHR (e.g. adoption of indicators; creation of national databases; increased funding for youth SRHR; policies, programs, legislation)
- Evidence that ACT!2030 adapted its approaches to overcome local challenges to sustainability of evidence-based youth-led advocacy for SRHR (e.g. "aging out", and gender, social or cultural barriers)

#### Proposed evaluation questions

- 4.a Were **sufficient human and financial resources** available to meet ACT!2030 objectives?
- 4.b Were **available resources efficiently utilised**? Is the evidence of utilisation problems, e.g. due to administrative constraints or deficiencies?
- 4.c To what extent did national youth alliances collect and share evidence of successful approaches or challenges? (What were the communication channels used between ACT!2030 Alliance Members and how were they used to share information to improve national-level ACT!2030 activities? Did each phase of national implementation of the ACT!2030 strategy build upon previous successes and/or use previous learning to address challenges?)
- 4.d To what extent did ACT!2030 plan for and address the long-term sustainability of national youth alliances? How? (Consider ongoing training and capacity-building provided over the course of the initiative, efforts to secure sustainable funding and other resources, creation of formalised long-term positions for young people / youth alliances to participate in decision-making.)
- 4.e To what extent did ACT!2030 adapt local approaches to **address gender**, **cultural**, **or social barriers** to meeting the needs of young people in relation to their SRHR?

# Annex 6: Interview and focus group discussion guide

**Purpose:** The aim of these interviews is to collect insights into how ACT!2030 was implemented in-country and to capture evidence relating to the evaluation questions. Interviews and focus group discussions (FGD) are expected to last between 30 and 60 minutes. Each will be conducted by one main interviewer (+/- one note-taker if available) in the most appropriate local language, with notes to be translated into English if required.

#### Introduction

- Introduce interviewers.
- Present the evaluation and its main purpose.
- Explain the purpose of the interview.
- Explain confidentiality aspects as well as how the responses of the interviewee will be treated and processed.
- Request consent to go ahead with the interview, including permission to take and/or use photos.
- Collect participant details (name, age, gender, organisation, contact details) for participant list.

#### Main interview questions

Questions marked with red asterisks are particularly relevant for focus group discussions.

- EQ 1. To what extent has ACT!2030 contributed to evidence-based reporting mechanisms, policies, programs and legislation related to young people's sexual and reproductive health and rights?
- 1.a \* To what extent were the **skills and knowledge of national youth alliances and youth organisations increased** in relation to national reporting and monitoring, data collection and analysis, and evidence-based advocacy for young people's SRHR? How?
- 1.b \* Did ACT!2030 contribute to the development of evidence-based guidelines and resources on young people's SRHR, including advocacy and communication tools?
- 1.c To what extent did ACT!2030 contribute to **national and global evidence databases** and reporting mechanisms for SRHR and HIV? How?
- 1.d Is there evidence that ACT!2030 contributed to the consideration of, and/or adoption of youth-related indicators (such as for YFHS, CSE or youth and HIV indicators) for inclusion in national and global databases and/or monitoring and reporting mechanisms related to the Sustainable Development Goals?
- 1.e Did ACT!2030 contribute to advocacy for the collection and/or use of **age- and sex-disaggregated data** on young people's SRHR (including the SRHR of marginalised and vulnerable young people) and if so, how?

- EQ 2. To what extent has ACT!2030 contributed to increasing young people's leadership, meaningful participation and engagement for accountability on their sexual and reproductive health and rights?
- 2.a \* How and to what extent did ACT!2030 facilitate and/or support youth-led participation within national and global platforms and processes through advocacy, lobbying and awareness-raising activities for young people's SRHR? (Consider training, capacity building, attendance at workshops, conferences and meetings).
- 2.b \* Were **marginalised and vulnerable groups** of young people, including young key populations at risk of or affected by HIV, meaningfully included in ACT!2030 efforts?
- 2.c Were national youth-led accountability mechanisms or processes adopted for monitoring and implementation of national, regional and global agreements and frameworks, such as the SDGs? To what extent can this be attributed to ACT!2030 specific efforts or activities?
- 2.d Did existing national and global youth-led accountability mechanisms achieve greater **visibility and recognition** because of the efforts or activities of ACT!2030?
- EQ 3. To what extent did ACT!2030 contribute to communication and coordination across countries and regions for youth-led accountability in relation to young people's SRHR?
- 3.a \* Did ACT!2030 contribute to development, sharing and exchange of evidence-based communication and advocacy tools? If so, to what extent? Were such tools shared across countries and regions?
- 3.b \* To what extent did ACT!2030 strengthen youth-led global, regional and national partnerships and networks through coordination and cooperation in support of young people's SRHR? How? (Consider the creation of national, regional or global partnerships and coordination mechanisms.)
- EQ 4. Were sufficient resources available and efficiently utilised to achieve sustainable results?
  - 4.a Were sufficient **human and financial resources** available to meet ACT!2030 objectives?
  - 4.b Were available resources **efficiently utilised**? Is there evidence of utilisation problems, e.g. due to administrative constraints or deficiencies?
  - 4.c \* To what extent did national youth alliances collect and share evidence of successful approaches or challenges? (What were the communication channels used between ACT!2030 Alliance Members and how were they used to share

information to improve national-level ACT!2030 activities? Did each phase of national implementation of the ACT!2030 strategy build upon previous successes and/or use previous learning to address challenges?)

- 4.d \* To what extent did ACT!2030 plan for and address the long-term sustainability of national youth alliances? How? (Consider ongoing training and capacity-building provided over the course of the initiative, efforts to secure sustainable funding and other resources, creation of formalised long-term positions for young people / youth alliances to participate in decision-making.)
- 4.e \* To what extent did ACT!2030 adapt local approaches to **address gender**, **cultural**, **or social barriers** to meeting the needs of young people in relation to their SRHR?

# **Closing questions**

- Before finalising the interview, we would like to give you the opportunity to comment on any aspects we may not have addressed. Is there anything you would like to add?
- Do you have any recommendations for ACT!2030 that you would like to share with us?
- Do you have any recommendations on other ACT!2030 stakeholders that would be important to meet?

#### **End of interview**

- Thank the interviewee for his/her time and contributions and communicate when the final evaluation report will be available.
- Provide contact details in case the interviewee would like to contact the evaluation team for more contributions or with questions/clarifications about the evaluation.

# **Annex 7: Survey Questionnaire**

#### Introduction:

Swiss TPH was mandated to conduct the review of ACT!2030 project to examine all phases and locations of the ACT!2030 project (September 2013 – \_December 2017). The primary objective of the evaluation is to assess the relevance, effectiveness, efficiency, and sustainability of the ACT!2030 initiative (OECD/DAC evaluation criteria), while also considering relevant gender and human rights issues, such as the inclusion of marginalized and vulnerable groups of young people. The review also has a strong focus on the contribution of ACT!2030 to meaningful youth participation. The review is designed to be forward-looking and utilization-focused. Through this survey we hope to include your insights, feedback, lessons learned and best practices related to ACT!2030. Results of the survey will be analysed with the other information we have received and used to inform the the final evaluation report.

We would appreciate if you could take the time to complete the following survey, which should take less than 15 minutes. Please only complete the survey once. Please fill in the survey before March 5, 2018. If you have any questions about the survey, please do not hesitate to contact us: reviewact2030@gmail.com

Your responses are voluntary and will be confidential. All responses will be fully anonymized, compiled and triangulated for the purpose of this review.

Thank you very much for your contribution!

Dr. Adriane Martin Hilber & Team

## **Background information**

1.	Name of organization
2.	Your position
3.	Location
	Algeria Bulgaria India Kenya Jamaica Mexico Nigeria Phillipines South Africa Switzerland Uganda United Sates Zambia Zimbabwe Other
4. 	Gender Female Male Other Chose not to declare
5.	Role within the ACT!2030
	An individual or organisational Alliance Member of ACT A partner or stakeholder of ACT Other, please specify
ΑC	CT!2030 priorities
6.	The overall aim of ACT!2030 is to advance and monitor progress on the Sustainable Development Goals through youth-led, data driven accountability and advocacy. It does through (select all that apply):
	<ul> <li>□ Lobbying and advocacy on SRHR and HIV</li> <li>□ Data collection</li> <li>□ Country-level social action</li> <li>□ Youth engagement for the implementation of the SDGs</li> <li>□ Defining country level indicators</li> </ul>

	<ul> <li>□ Support for the scale-up of age-sensitive, youth friendly HIV and sexual and reproductive health services</li> <li>□ Support for comprehensive sexuality education</li> <li>□ Advancing the voice and rights of marinalised and vulnerable youth population</li> <li>□ Coalition building for the global and national youth agendas.</li> <li>□ Building a youth movement for SRHR</li> <li>□ Other, please specify:</li> </ul>
Re	eaching young people
7.	Who are considered as marginalised and vulnerable young people in your country?
	<ul> <li>Young people living with HIV</li> <li>□ LGBTI</li> <li>□ Girls</li> <li>□ Young drug users</li> <li>□ Orphans</li> <li>□ pregnant young women and mothers</li> <li>□ Young people with special needs (disabled)</li> <li>□ Migrants</li> <li>□ Youth from rural areas</li> <li>□ Other, please specify:</li></ul>
8.	Did ACT!2030 advocate for the collection and use of data to advance young people's sexual and reproductive health and rights with a particular focus on marginalised and vulnerable young people? (On a scale of 1-5 where 1 is "not relevant at all" and 5 is "very relevant", please tick the box that corresponds.")  1 – Never 2 – Rarely 3 – Occasionally 4 – A moderate amount 5 – A great deal
9.	Has ACT!2030 contributed to the advancement or <i>adoptio</i> n of <i>youth-related indicators</i> (such as for YFHS, CSE or youth and HIV indicators) in national and global databases and/or monitoring and reporting mechanisms related to the Sustainable Development Goals?  ☐ Yes ☐ No
link	question 9 was answered with "yes", please provide examples (provide evidence, such as so to websites or the name and year of supporting documents where available). If "no", ntinue with the next question.
Re	est practices and lessons learned

11. Did ACT!2030 **increase the visibility and political space** for youth voice in national, regional or global dialogues and consultations related to the youth agenda in the monitoring of the SDG Agenda 2030?

	Yes No
	If question 11 was answered with "yes", at what level? ( <i>Tick all that apply.</i> ) If answered with "no", please continue with question 14.
	National Regional Global
	If question 11 was answered with "yes", please give example as to how this was done? (Provide evidence, such as links to websites or the name and year of supporting documents where available). Otherwise continue with the next question.
	Did the initiative increase the <b>involvement of youth in decision making</b> at the policy level in your country? Yes No
15	. If question 14 was answered with "yes" please explain why. (Provide evidence, such as links to websites or the name and year of supporting documents where available). If "no", continue with the next question.
	Did you receive <b>appropriate and sufficient resources</b> (e.g. training, organizational support, regular and clear communication, leadership, guidance tools) to achieve the objectives of the initiative?  Yes No
17	. What other additional resources may have been useful to achieve greater effectiveness?
	If you face <b>bottlenecks/challenges</b> related to the implementation of the project in your untry?
	Yes No

19. If question 18 was answered with "yes" please describe how. (Provide evidence, such as links to websites or the name and year of supporting documents where available):
20. Please describe one example of a <b>best practice</b> which you think had the greatest impact among all activities launched through ACT in your country.
21. In your opinion, do you think ACT!2030 should be extended?
□ Yes □ No
22. Why?
Contact Details Contact information in case of further questions (voluntary)
If you enter information below you agree herewith that the Swiss TPH evaluation team can contact you in case of further questions or the need for clarification.
As indicated earlier, information received will be used for the evaluation report whereas information retrieved through the survey will be fully anonymized.
23. First name:
24. Last name:
25. Email:
26. Country:
Thank you very much for your participation!
The Swiss TPH Team

#### **Annex 8: eRoundtable Discussion Questions**

#### Welcome note:

Good afternoon!

The entire evaluation team would like to welcome you to the eRoundtable on behalf of the ACT!2030 Review.

All national ACT coordinators, as well as UNAIDS regional youth advisors, have been invited to participate in this closed Facebook group.

The eRoundtable serves as a validation purpose. We will be sharing few selected findings from our review with you and in line with our evaluation questions. Please note that we have posted several questions. It would be great if you can reply directly below each of the questions.

We very much look forward to your valuable feedback and your national and regional perspectives. Your replies will also be weaved into the evaluation report and will be treated confidential and will be anonymized. Please do keep the information shared within this group confidential among yourselves too.

For your information: this is a closed group - no one from the outside can access this group unless invited by us.

The eRoundtable will be open until Friday, 23 March, until midnight Swiss time. You can login any time and most convenient for you to respond to our questions. You are also welcome to engage with the other participants of this eRoundtable.

We very much look forward to your replies!

Thank you very much for your support,

Leah & the entire evaluation team

## EQ 1. To what extent has ACT!2030 contributed to building an evidence base related to young people's sexual and reproductive health and rights?

**Preliminary finding: Sustainable change through indicator advocacy**: ACT!2030 has as an objective to conduct **indicator advocacy** around the SDG 2030 Agenda to advance youth SRHR. Indeed, 75% positively responded that ACT!2030 has contributed to the advancement or adoption of youth-related indicators in national and global databases and reporting mechanisms. Yet specific examples were not presented on when and how this was done.

Question: Did ACT contribute to indicator advocacy around the Agenda 2030 at national, regional or global level and if yes, what was achieved?

EQ 2. To what extent has ACT!2030 contributed to increasing young people's leadership, meaningful participation and engagement for accountability on their sexual and reproductive health and rights?

**Preliminary finding: Meaningful participation for all:** ACT!2030 facilitated and supported youth-led participation within national and global platforms and processes through advocacy, lobbying and awareness-raising activities for young people's SRHR, albeit to varying degrees and outcomes. According to our survey, 88% of respondents think that ACT increased the involvement of youth in decision-making at country level.

Question: But who benefited?

Question: Through ACT, was youth voice given more respect and listened to within national dialogues? How? Give examples.

Question: Was there innovation in how best to outreach to key populations that could be shared? Please provide examples if any.

**Preliminary findings: From participation to accountability:** At national level, ACT advocated for youth participation and inclusion in monitoring processes related Agenda 2030 but did not specifically contribute to national youth-led accountability mechanisms because they did not fully exist as yet (however, accountability mechanisms in which CSOs engaged, including youth organisations did exist).

Question. Were ACT member organisations in a position – also given their country context, cultural settings, financial means etc. - to create functional youth-led accountability mechanisms at national, regional and/or global level or was this out of reach for project?

**Preliminary finding: Visibility for youth SRHR in Agenda 2030**: ACT!2030 used different entry points in order to create spaces and visibility for monitoring the SDG agenda for youth related SRHR issues but did that visibility translate into youth-led accountability at any level.

Question: Why or why not?

EQ 3. To what extent did ACT!2030 contribute to communication and coordination across countries and regions for youth-led accountability in relation to young people's SRHR?

**Preliminary finding: Sharing and learning:** ACT contributed, in part, to the development, sharing and exchange of evidence-based communication and advocacy tools but did not thoroughly follow up their use in countries nor share learning and results between countries to validate their usefulness or effectiveness.

Question: It is unclear whether Alliance members learned from each other in any comprehensive way outside of the meetings. Was this a missed opportunity?

Question: ACT had a website and social media platforms for sharing between Alliance countries but they were rarely used. Why not?

**Preliminary finding: Building a youth movement around Agenda 2030**: The ACT Alliance engaged multiple youth-led organisations in their own countries to advocate around the Agenda 2030 for youth SRHR. And ACT Alliance members participated in regional and global advocacy efforts, yet we don't seem to be any closer to a coordinated message around SRHR for youth (by youth) than we were in 2014 at the close of the MDGs.

Question: Are global youth networks and partnerships still needed (and relevant) to advance a common message and youth led voice around SRHR and agenda 2030 globally? Why?

Question: Are national and regional partnerships and joint efforts more effective to advance a common position on youth SRHR? How?

## EQ 4. Were sufficient resources available and efficiently utilised to achieve sustainable results?

**Preliminary finding: Sustainability:** ACT!2030 did not sufficiently plan for and address the long-term sustainability of national youth alliances.

Question: Youth-led organisations are generally very fragile due to their lack of long-term engagement and loss of institutional memory due to aging out. Do we need to work with only youth-led organisations or is there room for youth focused organisations to play a role in the global and national youth movement?

### **Annex 9: Terms of Reference- Country case studies**

## End Review of ACT!2030 Phases 1-4: Youth-led, data driven accountability of the Sustainable Development Goals

#### Terms of Reference

# National Youth Consultant Country Case Study (Mexico and Zimbabwe)

#### 1. Context

The world has more young people than ever before, but progress on key aspects of the health of young people has, to date, been slow, with little overall improvement in rates of adolescent pregnancy, HIV infection in adolescents, child marriage, and the harmful practice of female genital mutilation. As a result, recent international development frameworks have placed increasing emphasis on meeting the needs of young people and the Sustainable Development Goals recognise young people as a previously neglected group whose needs must be addressed. ACT!2030 directly responds to this context by placing young people front and centre in using data to advocate for their own sexual and reproductive health and rights. The project was initiated in 2013, with the objective of increasing youth participation in negotiations for the post-2015 development agenda. The initiative now focuses on accountability for implementing the 2030 Sustainable Development Goals, with the current phase of the project emphasising data and evidence, advocacy for youth-friendly sexual and reproductive health / HIV indicators, communication and global exchange.

Swiss TPH has been contracted to review and evaluate the UNAIDS project ACT!2030. ACT!2030 (formerly ACT!2015) is an innovative initiative which supports youth-led social action and advocacy for data-driven accountability around the Sustainable Development Goals <a href="https://sustainabledevelopment.un.org/sdgs">https://sustainabledevelopment.un.org/sdgs</a> and other sexual and reproductive health and rights agreements and frameworks. Supported by the PACT, UNAIDS and IPPF, and implemented together with national youth alliances in twelve countries, the current phase of the project focuses on indicator advocacy, evidence gathering communications, and global exchange in order to identify, assess and address key barriers to young people's sexual and reproductive health and rights. The review will evaluate the ACT!2030 project <a href="http://www.act2030.org/">http://www.act2030.org/</a> (Phases 1-4, September 2013 – December 2017) with a particular focus on Phase 4 (September 2015 – December 2017).

The **primary objective** of the evaluation is to assess the relevance, effectiveness, efficiency, and sustainability of the ACT!2030 initiative with special consideration for the relevant gender and human rights issues. The review will cover all twelve countries in which ACT!2030 has been implemented, with particular emphasis on two country case studies to allow deeper understanding of the project's impacts. The review will be forward-looking and utilisation focussed, with emphasis on four key areas:

- Achievements of the ACT!2030 project during Phases 1 4 and identification of how these results were achieved:
- Implementation challenges;
- Lessons learned

#### 2. Team composition

The review was mandated to the Swiss Centre for International Health at the Swiss TPH <a href="https://www.swisstph.ch/en/">https://www.swisstph.ch/en/</a> under the direction of Dr. Adriane Martin Hilber as the team leader of this review, Leah Bohle as the Project Manager at STPH and Frances squires as a senior research consultant. They will be supported by a small technical team at Swiss TPH. The evaluation team will include young people on the evaluation team to ensure the perspectives of young people are reflected in this review. A total of two country case (Mexico, Zimbabwe) and 10 desk studies will be conducted by *national youth consultants* coming from each of the 12 countries including a document review and limited data collection. The country level youth consultants will be coordinated and supported by two youth trainees based in Switzerland.

#### 3. Objectives of this Consultancy

The national youth consultant will be responsible to support the country case study. This will require the identification, review and analysis of documents, by entering results into a grid provided. Further it will include a stakeholder mapping of youth organizations and Other Stakeholders involved in ACT!2030 in country. In close consultation with team leader a selection of stakeholders for key-informant interviews and/or Focus Group Discussions will be done.

The national youth consultant will be responsible to set up an agenda for the in-country visit, keep the agenda up-to-date while in country and accompany the team leader during data collection and take notes where needed. The national consultants will be expected to support the write up of the case studies in English if possible.

The national youth consultants will be supervised by the Dr Adriane Martin Hilber, the lead evaluator. They will also liaise with the project manager, Dr Leah Bohle for other managerial and technical matters.

#### 4. Approach/activities

The national youth researchers will be expected to do the following tasks.

- Participate in skype meetings with the Swiss TPH team in Basel for coordination, planning and discussion of data collection and reporting activities.
- Conduct a literature review and stakeholder mapping prior to the country visit
- Participate in the country evaluation visit and provide support for the interviewing, not-taking and leading of focus group discussions among young people.
- Provide verbal translation if needed.
- Support the analysis of findings, drafting of conclusions and recommendations.
- Support the drafting of the country evaluation report.
- Participate in a validation Facebook roundtable on the final evaluation results with other country level youth stakeholders.

#### 5. Profile

We are looking for young persons between 20-28 years old students will have the following skills and expertise:

- Engaged in either a master degree or higher level studies
- Knowledge of key issues related to international health and the Sustainable Development Goals
- Experience coordinating young people to conduct research, trainings or events
- Experience in qualitative data collection including interviews and focus group discussions
- Experience in working internationally and cross-culturally
- Well organized, reliable and committed
- Enjoy working with a team
- Flexibility as the data collection may require travel or working in the evenings or

- weekends.
- Good verbal and written communication and reporting skills (including MS Office)
- Fluency in the local Language and a strong command of English (spoken and written) is required
- Located in the capital of the country where the organization of the ACT!2030 project is coordinated from (e.g. Mexico City and Harare)

Additionally, knowledge of HIV, Human Rights and youth movements would be an asset

The youth researcher will need to have their own laptop with MS Office and Skype installed, a headset and internet connection to conduct skype calls, take notes and write reports.

The youth researchers cannot have been involved currently or in the past in the ACT!2030 initiative (or affiliated organisations).

#### 5. Timing, place, duration and remuneration

The National youth consultant shall be available during the field missions and a few days directly before and after to prepare and follow up any outstanding issues as needed. The case study researcher will need to be available 8 days of work in total. Work in **Mexico** is anticipated to take place between 28 January and 3 February 2018 with a few days potentially in addition on either at the beginning and end of the mission. Work in **Zimbabwe** is anticipated to take place between 4-10 March 2018, again for extra days potentially at the beginning or end of the field visit. The consultancy will be home-based (for the literature review) and then will require accompanying data collection during the in-country visit. No travelling outside the capital is foreseen for this consultancy.

The youth researcher will be paid \$100 to \$150 per day based on the level of experience. Expenses will be covered by the STPH evaluator onsite.

#### 6. Reporting

Filled in matrices (with information from the stakeholder mapping and document review must be submitted prior to the arrival of the evaluation leader. During the visit, the youth researchers is expected to support the inputting of qualitative data collected onto data grids which will be used during the evaluation field visit. Writing and finalization of the country case study report may require support by the national youth consultant immediately following the country case visit.

We would aim to have the successful candidate in place as soon as possible.

Please submit your CV, a letter of motivation and a writing sample to:

Dr Leah Bohle at leah.bohle@swisstph.ch no later than 19 January 2018.

### Annex 10: Terms of Reference- Swiss-based youth consultants

The Swiss Tropical and Public Health Institute is a public institution with the mandate to contribute to the improvement of the health of populations internationally and nationally through excellence in research, services, and teaching and training.

The Swiss Centre for International Health (SCIH) of the Swiss TPH conducts consultancy, project management, training and applied research work in international health. The Department is seeking a young person between 20 and 28 years old who wants to join our small and dynamic team as a:

Trainee (ca. 12 hours per week) in the project "End Review of ACT!2030 Phases 1-4: Youth-led, data driven accountability of the Sustainable Development Goals."

#### 1. Context

The world has more young people than ever before, but progress on key aspects of the health of young people has, to date, been slow, with little overall improvement in rates of adolescent pregnancy, HIV infection in adolescents, child marriage, and the harmful practice of female genital mutilation. As a result, recent international development frameworks have placed increasing emphasis on meeting the needs of young people and the Sustainable Development Goals recognise young people as a previously neglected group whose needs must be addressed. ACT!2030 directly responds to this context by placing young people front and centre in using data to advocate for their own sexual and reproductive health and rights. The project was initiated in 2013, with the objective of increasing youth participation in negotiations for the post-2015 development agenda. The initiative now focuses on accountability for implementing the 2030 Sustainable Development Goals, with the current phase of the project emphasising data and evidence, advocacy for youth-friendly sexual and reproductive health / HIV indicators, communication and global exchange.

#### 2. Task

Swiss TPH has been contracted to review and evaluate the UNAIDS project ACT!2030. ACT!2030 (formerly ACT!2015) is an innovative initiative which supports youth-led social action and advocacy for data-driven accountability around the Sustainable Development Goals https://sustainabledevelopment.un.org/sdgs and other sexual and reproductive health and rights agreements and frameworks. Supported by the PACT, UNAIDS and IPPF, and implemented together with national youth alliances in twelve countries, the current phase of the project focuses on indicator advocacy, evidence gathering communications, and global exchange in order to identify, assess and address key barriers to young people's sexual and reproductive health and rights. The review will evaluate the ACT!2030 project http://www.act2030.org/ (Phases 1-4, September 2013 – December 2017) with a particular focus on Phase 4 (September 2015 – December 2017). The primary objective of the evaluation is to assess the relevance, effectiveness, efficiency, and sustainability of the ACT!2030 initiative with special consideration for the relevant gender and human rights issues. The review will cover all twelve countries in which ACT!2030 has been implemented, with particular emphasis on two country case studies to allow deeper understanding of the project's impacts. The review will be forward-looking and utilisation focussed, with emphasis on four key areas: Achievements of the ACT!2030 project during Phases 1 – 4 and identification of how these results were achieved; Implementation challenges; Lessons learned.

#### 3. Team composition

The review was mandated to the Swiss Centre for International Health at the Swiss TPH <a href="https://www.swisstph.ch/en/">https://www.swisstph.ch/en/</a> under the direction of Dr. Adriane Martin Hilber as the team leader of this review and Leah Bohle as the Project Manager. They will be supported by a small technical team at Swiss TPH. The evaluation team will include young people on the evaluation team to ensure the perspectives of young people are reflected in this review. A total of two country case (Mexico, Zimbabwe) and 10 desk studies will be conducted by national youth consultants coming from each of the 12 countries including a document review and limited data collection. The country level youth consultants will be coordinated and supported by two youth trainees based in Switzerland.

#### 4. Objectives of this training period

A total of two trainees, located in Switzerland, shall support the Swiss TPH team in Basel. The trainees will coordinate the national youth consultants in the 10 countries, and the respective country desk studies including limited data collection and document review. The two trainees will ensure that the tools provided to the national youth consultants are well used, that milestones are met and that a final desk review report is delivered on time and of highest quality.

#### 5. Approach/activities

The youth trainees will be expected to do the following tasks.:

- Attending team meetings with the Swiss TPH team in Basel for coordination, planning and reporting of activities. This may require travel to Basel.
- Providing backstopping (via Skype and WhatsApp) with the designated 5 national youth consultants from selected countries (each trainee based in Switzerland will coordinate 5 national youth consultants each).
- Guide, support and supervise the national youth consultants in conducting a national level literature review, a stakeholder mapping, identifying key informants to interview, conducting of focus group discussion/key-informant interview partners, and reporting on the data gathered.
- Coordinate the overall process of the desk reviews, including regular communication and support to national youth consultants and timely submission of deliverables.
- Proof-read and edit and help finalise, if necessary, draft country desk study reports drafted by the national consultants.
- Share draft reports with the Swiss TPH team and finalize reports in close collaboration with the national youth consultants, based on the feedback received.

#### 6. Profile

We are looking for young persons between 20 and 28 years old who wants to join our small and dynamic team. The trainees should have the following background, skills and expertise:

- Be engaged in either a Bachelor's or Master's level studies
- Knowledge of key issues related to international health and the Sustainable Development Goals
- Experience coordinating young people conducting research, trainings or events
- Experience in qualitative data collection including interviews and focus group discussions

- Experience in working internationally and cross-culturally
- Well organized
- Reliable and committed
- Enjoy working with a team
- Flexibility required as some of the youth consultants coordinated will be located in different time zones
- Located in Switzerland with the opportunity to come to Basel for at least two visits
- Good writing and editing skills (including MS Office). Fluency in English, and working knowledge of French is an asset
- HIV and Human Rights knowledge is an asset
- Knowledge related to accountability mechanisms and youth movements is an asset

The trainees requires to have their own laptop with MS Office and Skype installed, a headset and internet connection to conduct phone calls through mobile phone and Skype. The trainees are currently not involved in the ACT!2030 initiative (or affiliated organisations) and have not been involved in the initiative in the past.

#### 7. Timing, place and duration

The trainees shall be available from 15 January 2018 to 31 March 2018 for 12 hours per week (preferably 1 ½ defined days per week or specific pre-defined hours per day). The trainees will be home-based including few travels to Swiss TPH Headquarters in Basel.

#### 8. Reporting

The trainees need to ensure to receive all filled in data collection tables (including stakeholder mapping, document review and qualitative data collection grids) by the national youth consultants as well as a final draft desk case study report at a predefined date. Desk case studies require finalization by the national youth consultant in collaboration with the trainees and based on the feedback received from the Swiss TPH team by a predefined date.

The two trainees are responsible for timely submission of all deliverables and of highest quality.

We would aim to have the successful candidate in place as soon as possible.

### **Annex 11: Terms of Reference- National youth consultants**

## End Review of ACT!2030 Phases 1-4: Youth-led, data driven accountability of the Sustainable Development Goals

#### Terms of Reference

National Youth Consultant – Desk Case Study

(Algeria, Bulgaria, India, Jamaica, Kenya, Nigeria, Philippines, South Africa, Uganda, Zambia)

#### 1. Context

The world has more young people than ever before, but progress on key aspects of the health of young people has, to date, been slow, with little overall improvement in rates of adolescent pregnancy, HIV infection in adolescents, child marriage, and the harmful practice of female genital mutilation. As a result, recent international development frameworks have placed increasing emphasis on meeting the needs of young people and the Sustainable Development Goals recognise young people as a previously neglected group whose needs must be addressed. ACT!2030 directly responds to this context by placing young people front and centre in using data to advocate for their own sexual and reproductive health and rights. The project was initiated in 2013, with the objective of increasing youth participation in negotiations for the post-2015 development agenda. The initiative now focuses on accountability for implementing the 2030 Sustainable Development Goals, with the current phase of the project emphasising data and evidence, advocacy for youth-friendly sexual and reproductive health / HIV indicators, communication and global exchange.

Swiss TPH has been contracted to review and evaluate the UNAIDS project ACT!2030. ACT!2030 (formerly ACT!2015) is an innovative initiative which supports youth-led social action and advocacy for data-driven accountability around the Sustainable Development Goals <a href="https://sustainabledevelopment.un.org/sdgs">https://sustainabledevelopment.un.org/sdgs</a> and other sexual and reproductive health and rights agreements and frameworks. Supported by the PACT, UNAIDS and IPPF, and implemented together with national youth alliances in twelve countries, the current phase of the project focuses on indicator advocacy, evidence gathering communications, and global exchange in order to identify, assess and address key barriers to young people's sexual and reproductive health and rights. The review will evaluate the ACT!2030 project <a href="http://www.act2030.org/">http://www.act2030.org/</a> (Phases 1-4, September 2013 – December 2017) with a particular focus on Phase 4 (September 2015 – December 2017).

The **primary objective** of the evaluation is to assess the relevance, effectiveness, efficiency, and sustainability of the ACT!2030 initiative with special consideration for the relevant gender and human rights issues. The review will cover all twelve countries in which ACT!2030 has been implemented, with particular emphasis on two country case studies to allow deeper understanding of the project's impacts. The review will be forward-looking and utilisation focussed, with emphasis on four key areas:

- Achievements of the ACT!2030 project during Phases 1 4 and identification of how these results were achieved;
- Implementation challenges;
- Lessons learned

#### 2. Team composition

The review was mandated to the Swiss Centre for International Health at the Swiss TPH <a href="https://www.swisstph.ch/en/">https://www.swisstph.ch/en/</a> under the direction of Dr. Adriane Martin Hilber as the team leader of this review, Leah Bohle as the Project Manager at STPH and Frances squires as a senior research consultant. They will be supported by a small technical team at Swiss TPH. The evaluation team will include young people on the evaluation team to ensure the perspectives of young people are reflected in this review. A total of two country case (Mexico, Zimbabwe) and 10 desk studies will be conducted by *national youth consultants* coming from each of the other countries of the project including a document review and limited data collection. The country level youth consultants will be coordinated and supported by two youth trainees based in Switzerland.

#### 3. Objectives of this Consultancy

The **national youth consultant** will be responsible to conduct a desk review for the evaluation under the guidance of a Swiss TPH researcher and Swiss based youth researcher. The national youth researcher will be responsible for data collection, review and analysis and short reporting in a standardised format on country-level ACT!2030 activities, processes and results. This will require the identification, review and analysis of documents including interviewing selected NGO leaders and stakeholders either in-person or over skype in country, inputting the results of the interviews in a matrix and drafting a summary of the finding. Further it will include a stakeholder mapping of youth organizations and Other Stakeholders involved in ACT!2030 in country based on information provided by ACT!2030 leaders in country, UNAIDS, IPPF and other relevant stakeholders. In close consultation with team leader a selection of stakeholders for key-informant interviews and/or Focus Group Discussions will be done.

The national youth consultants will be supervised by a Swiss Youth researcher who will be in turn backed up by a Swiss TPH research expert. They may also liaise with the project manager, Dr Leah Bohle for other managerial and technical matters.

#### 4. Approach/activities

The national youth researchers will be expected to do the following tasks.

- Participate in skype meetings with the Swiss TPH team in Basel for coordination, planning and discussion of data collection and reporting activities.
- Conduct a literature review and stakeholder mapping of ACT!2030 Partners in country
- Participate in the selection of key stakeholders to interview
- Using evaluation questionnaire provided, conduct interviews and provide the findings in a written format on a data collection matrix or grid.
- Summarise the findings onto 3 one page summary sheets for review.
- Finalise country desk study notes in collaboration with the Swiss based researcher coordinator. *All written results must be provided in English.*
- Participate in a validation Facebook roundtable on the final evaluation results with other country level youth stakeholders.

#### 5. Profile

We are looking for **young persons between 20-28 years old who are students** that have the following skills and expertise:

- Educational level of either a master degree or higher
- Knowledge of key issues related to international health and the Sustainable

- **Development Goals**
- Experience in qualitative data collection including interviews and focus group discussions
- Experience in working internationally and cross-culturally
- Well organized, reliable and committed
- Enjoy working with a team
- Flexibility as the data collection may require travel or working in the evenings or weekends.
- Good verbal and written communication and reporting skills (including MS Office)
- Fluency in the local Language and a strong command of English (spoken and written) is required
- Located in the capital of the country where the organization of the ACT!2030 project is coordinated from

Additionally, knowledge of HIV, Human Rights and youth movements would be an asset

The youth researcher will need to have their own laptop with MS Office and Skype installed, a headset and internet connection to conduct skype calls, take notes and write reports.

The youth researchers cannot have been involved currently or in the past in the ACT!2030 initiative (or affiliated organisations).

#### 5. Timing, place, duration and remuneration

The national youth researcher for the desk studies will need to be available between 22 January and 16 February 2018 for the data collection and write-up. The researcher can organize the interviews and the literature review on their own schedule but all work must be completed and a draft summaries and matrices submitted by 2 March. A final report will then need to be ready within one week thereafter. It is anticipated that the work will require about 5 days of work.

The youth researcher conducting the desk studies will be paid a lump sum of \$500 for the assignment upon approved completion of the work.

#### 6. Reporting

A matrix with the results of the document review and interviews completed; and a three 1-2 page summaries of the results that follows a detailed guideline in English.